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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Han Zhenghai (Board Chairman)
(appointed as non-executive Director
on 20 January 2021; and further
as Board Chairman on 11 March 2021)

Ms. Yang Xiaogjiu (ceased to be Board Chairman
on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Xie Tom (retired on 29 September 2020)

Mr. Yan Peng (appointed on 13 November 2020)

Ms. Li Jiangtao (appointed on 17 June 2021)

Mr. Deng Dongping
(appointed as independent non-executive Director
on 13 November 2020 and re-designated to
non-executive Director on 12 July 2021)

Mr. Liu Lihan
(appointed as independent non-executive Director
on 11 March 2027 and re-designated to

non-executive Director on 12 July 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Li (resigned on 1 September 2020)

Mr. Lai Yuen Piu

Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (resigned on 17 June 2021)

Mr. Deng Dongping
(appointed as independent non-executive Director
on 13 November 2020 and re-designated to
non-executive Director on 12 July 2021)

Mr. Liu Lihan
(appointed as independent non-executive Director
on 11 March 2021 and re-designated to
non-executive Director on 12 July 2021)

Ms. Mo Li (appointed as on 17 June 2021)

Mr. Kan Yat Kit (appointed on 12 July 2021)

Mr. Lok Chiu Chan (appointed on 12 July 2021)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEEHR

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Kan Yat Kit (Chairman) (appointed on 12 July 2021)

Mr. Li Li (ceased on 1 September 2020)
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (ceased on 17 June 2021)
Mr. Deng Dongping
(appointed on 13 November 2020 and
ceased on 12 July 2021)
Mr. Liu Lihan
(appointed on 11 March 2021 and
ceased on 12 July 2021)
Ms. Mo Li (appointed on 17 June 2021)
Mr. Lok Chiu Chan (appointed on 12 July 2021)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Mo Li (Chairman)
(appointed as member on 17 June 2021 and
further as committee chairman on 12 July 2021)

Mr. Li Li (ceased on 1 September 2020)
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (ceased on 17 June 2021)
Mr. Deng Dongping
(appointed on 13 November 2020 and
ceased on 12 July 2021)
Mr. Liu Lihan
(appointed on 11 March 2021 and
ceased on 12 July 2021)
Mr. Kan Yat Kit (appointed on 12 July 2021)
Mr. Lok Chiu Chan (appointed on 12 July 2021)
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Han Zhenghai (Chairman)
(appointed on 11 March 2021)
Ms. Yang Xiaogiu (ceased on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Li Li (ceased on 1 September 2020)
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (ceased on 17 June 2021)
Mr. Deng Dongping
(appointed on 13 November 2020 and
ceased on 12 July 2021)
Mr. Liu Lihan
(appointed on 11 March 2021 and
ceased on 12 July 2021)
Ms. Mo Li (appointed on 17 June 2021)
Mr. Kan Yat Kit (appointed on 12 July 2021)
Mr. Lok Chiu Chan (appointed on 12 July 2021)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (Chairman)
Mr. Li Li (ceased on 1 September 2020)
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (ceased on 17 June 2021)
Mr. Deng Dongping
(appointed on 13 November 2020 and
ceased on 12 July 2021)
Mr. Liu Lihan
(appointed on 11 March 2021 and
ceased on 12 July 2021)
Ms. Mo Li (appointed on 17 June 2021)
Mr. Kan Yat Kit (appointed on 12 July 2021)
Mr. Lok Chiu Chan (appointed on 12 July 2021)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. Chan Kwan Pak
Mr. Wong Ming Chun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Li Jiangtao
Mr. Chan Kwan Pak

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited
O-Bank Co., Limited

AUDITOR
BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS

Hong Kong Law
Fairbairn Catley Low & Kong

Bermuda Law

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MUFG Fund Service (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road, Pembroke HMO08
Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square

338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Room 3702, 37/F,

118 Connaught Road West,

Sheung Wan,

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.chinainvestment.com.hk

STOCK CODE
204
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —F——F=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F T THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets HERATPESAZEREEZ
at fair value through profit or loss M EEZFIBRE 22,467 15,115
Revenue & - -
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AREEEABREEFERE
the Company (15,450) (52,541)
2021 2020
=)=k ==k
Net asset value per share BREEFE HK$0.04& T  HK$0.04% 7T
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (“Mr. Chan")

Mr. Chan, aged 56, has been appointed as an executive Director
since 29 May 2012. He is also the chairman of the Risk Management
Committee. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Science degree from
the College of Business Administration of the University of South
Florida in the United States of America. Mr. Chan is currently a
licensed person to carry out type 4 (advising on securities) and type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and

Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Mr. Chan was appointed as execute Director of China Innovation
Investment Limited (Stock Code: 1217) (“Cll”) in June 2003, China
Investment and Finance Group Limited (Stock Code: 1226) (“CIFG")
in March 2011, Capital VC Limited (Stock Code: 2324) ("CVC") in
November 2012 and China New Economy Fund Limited (Stock
Code: 80) (“CNEF") in June 2013. CllI, CIFG, CVC and CNEF are
all investment companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan
was an executive Director of China Trends Holding Limited (Stock
Code: 8171) (“CTH") in February 2016 and re-appointed as an
non-executive Director in December 2020. China Trends Holding

Limited is a company listed on the GEM board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Han Zhenghai (“Mr. Han")

Mr. Han, aged 44, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director since 20 January 2021 and additionally as the Chairman
of the Board since 11 March 2021. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Han has extensive experience in
investment and management business. He has been serving as a
manager of Beijing Zhongmin Zhenxing Construction Technology
Co., Lid* (= RIREEZRIHFL AR A RF]) and president of
Beijing China Zhiyuan Technology Co., Ltd.* (It R EFURRI A
fRAa]) since June 2020 and May 2017, respectively.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEEREE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Han Zhenghai (“Mr. Han") (continued)

In addition, he also served as vice president and chief executive
officer of Beijing Ruihai Zongheng Marketing Consultant Co.,
Lid* (It RBBHELHBERGRET AR from July 2007 to
May 2017, and was appointed as an expert of the National Policy
Think Tank Expert Committee of China Industrial Cooperation
Association* (PR T XA EHEEREEERELZEE) in May
2018. From November 2020 to February 2021, he was appointed
as an executive Director of Ling Rui Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
784), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He is also appointed as an executive Director of Golden Faith
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2863), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since April 2021.

Ms. Yang Xiaoqiu (“Ms. Yang")

Ms. Yang, aged 34, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
since 17 August 2018 and she was the Chairman of the Board from
6 September 2018 to 11 March 2021.Ms. Yang graduated from
Hangzhou Normal University Qianjiang College* (#7101 il #5 X 285
L2t ) with a bachelor's degree in tourism management in July
2008.

She has extensive experience in operation and corporate
management. Ms. Yang held management roles and directorship
in the following companies, namely, Hangzhou Chinese Apparel
Limited* (#1 N 2 A Bk & B R 2 7), Shanghai Dons Lamour
Jewelry Limited* ( b/ BAEKE AR Q) and AARUI International
Group Holding Company Limited ( B In R BB S EIZRBRAA]) .
Since February 2018, Ms. Yang has been an executive director of
Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited (listed on main board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2212).

Mr. Yan Peng (“Mr. Yan")

Mr. Yan, aged 51, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
since 13 November 2020. He graduated from Henan Institute of
Financial Management majoring in Finance. Mr. Yan is a Certified
Financial Planner and Corporate Finance Consultant in the PRC.
Mr. Yan has extensive experience in the financial sector in mainland
China and has held senior positions in various banks in the PRC and

is currently a director of a fund investment company in the PRC.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERENEEEREE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Ms. Li Jiangtao (“Ms. Li")

Ms. Li, aged 37, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
since 17 June 2021. She obtained a Master of Science in Applied
Mathematics for Science and Technology (Actuarial and Investment
Science) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is
currently an associate of the Societies of Actuaries. Ms. Li has held
actuarial related positions in many companies in Hong Kong. She
is the founder of Promise HK Consultants Limited, a company
mainly engaged in financial asset allocation consulting, investment
risk management consulting, and has been its director since 2015.
Ms. Li has extensive experience in financial investment, financial

analysis, and risk management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Yuen Piu (“Mr. Lai")

Mr. Lai, aged 55, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 25 January 2019. He is a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Lai holds
a bachelor degree in Commerce and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered and Certified Accountants and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lai has over 22 years of experience in
the accounting and finance sector and is currently the financial

controller of a technology company.

Mr. Deng Dongping (“Mr. Deng”)

Mr. Deng, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 13 November 2020 and has been
redesignated as a non-executive Director with effect from 12 July
2021. Mr. Deng graduated from Tianjin Normal University majoring
in business administration. After over 10 years’ military service in
the PRC, Mr. Deng has held senior positions in the cultural industry
in mainland China. He is now the deputy director of the Chinese

Volunteer Emergency Rescue Volunteer Committee.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEEREE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Liu Lihan (“Mr. Liu")

Mr. Liu, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 11 March 2021 and has been redesignated as a non-
executive Director with effect from 12 July 2021. Mr. Liu holds a
Master degree in Economics from Nankai University. Mr. Liu has
held senior positions in various banks and financial institutions
in China before and is currently the president of an investment
management company. Mr. Liu has a wealth of experience in
financial and investment sectors. From September 2015 to February
2016, Mr. Liu was an executive director of Co-Prosperity Holdings
Limited (now known as Asia Television Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 707), a company listed on the main board of the Stock

Exchange.

Ms. Mo Li (“Ms. Mo")

Ms. Mo, aged 46, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 17 June 2021. She is a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Ms. Mo
obtained a bachelor's degree from Hunan University, majoring in
accounting. She has rich experience in financial and management
business. She has been serving as a sales representative in Humana
in the United States since August 2019. From January 2010 to
March 2012 and from August 2014 to May 2019, Ms. Mo served as a
director of Shen Zhen Shi ECO Building Facade Consultant Limited.
She was also a vice manager of personal business department of
Ping An Bank Fuhong Branch from April 2012 to August 2014.

Mr. Kan Yat Kit (“Mr. Kan")

Mr. Kan, aged 39, obtained his Master of Professional Accounting
at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2006 and his Bachelor
of Chemical Engineering at the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2004. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and an Associate Chartered
Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He is currently serving as a director of a professional
accounting corporate practice. Prior to that, he was the company
secretary of a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, and had been employed by various professional

accounting firms.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERENEEEREE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Lok Chiu Chan (“Mr. Lok")

Mr. Lok, aged 46, graduated from the Department of Economics,
Xiamen University, majoring in business management; and holds a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the Law School of Beijing University
as well as a Master of Laws degree from the School of Law of
Renmin University of China, majoring in Constitution Law and
Administrative Law. Mr. Lok had held senior positions in large
conglomerates and is well versed in asset management, securities
and futures dealing, corporate finance, family trust, insurance
brokerage, fintech, business consulting and corporate governance.
Mr. Lok is currently a responsible officer licensed under the SFO to
conduct type 1 (Dealing in Securities), 4 (Advising on Securities) and
9 (Asset Management) regulated activities as well as the managing
director of Premier Management Limited, a subsidiary of China
Chuanglian Education Financial Group Limited (Hong Kong Stock

Code: 2371). Mr. Lok is also ardent in educational and social affairs.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ms. Lin Yudan (“Ms. Lin")

Ms. Lin Yudan, aged 38, was the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company from 25 January 2019 to 12 July 2021. She obtained her
bachelor’s degree in bio-engineering from Sichuan University of
Science & Engineering (F4)I1F2 T2t ) in the People’s Republic
of China. Ms. Lin has over 10 years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. Lin has been an executive director and the legal
representative of Sichuan Z. K. Investment Co., Ltd.* (P9JI|JEE 1%
A ABRZAR]) since 2011.

(* for identification purpose only)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Investment Development Limited (the “"Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “"Group”)) hereby present its report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in investment
holding for medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes,
and investment in listed and unlisted securities. There have been no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 51 of the annual report. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Review and Future Prospect

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are
provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis section on

pages 25 to 31 of this Annual Report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 25 to 31 of this Annual

Report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Important Events after the Year-end Date

(i)  On 4 May 2021, the Company proposes to raise gross
proceeds of approximately HK$127,000,000 before expenses
by way of a rights issue of up to 634,892,864 Rights Shares at
a price of HK$0.2 per Rights Share on the basis of one Rights
Share for every two existing Shares held by the shareholders.

(i) On 28 June 2021, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party by which
the Group agreed to sell, and the buyer agreed to buy 1%
(representing 1 owned share) of equity interest in Huge Leader
for a cash consideration of HK$50,000. As the consideration
for disposal of equity interest in Huge Leader falls below 70%
of their respective fair value as at 31 March 2019, the chairman
of the Group is required to pay a total amount of shortfall
of HK$264,000 (after taking into account the considerations
received) to the Company under the terms of the Deed of

Indemnity.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's principal business activities are exposed to a
variety of key risks including credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk and market risk. Details of the aforesaid
key risks and risk mitigation measures are set out in “Financial
Risk Management Objectives and Policies” in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policy and Performance

We are committed to protect the environment by introducing a
green policy to enhance the awareness of environmental protection
among staff. The Group has implemented internal recycling
programme for office consumables such as toner cartridges and

paper to help protect the environment and natural resources.

The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in offices
and branch premises where applicable, such as taking initiatives to
reduce paper usage by encouraging the use of websites and online
version of corporate communications. As regards reduction of
power consumption, lighting, air-conditioners and office equipment

will be turned off when not in use.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group has been allocating resources
to ensure the Group's ongoing compliance with the updated
applicable rules and regulations. During the year under review, the
Group has, to the best of our knowledge, complied with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company Law of Bermuda, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
other relevant rules and regulations.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders
The Group's success lies also on the support from key stakeholders,

including shareholders, employees, bankers, and service providers.

Shareholders

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate
value to our shareholders. Description of the shareholders’
rights and our investor relations can be found in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 32 to 45 of this Annual Report.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important assets
of the Group. The objective of the Group's human resources
management is to reward and recognise our employees by
providing a competitive remuneration package, appropriate
incentives such as share options and bonus, and opportunities

within the Group for career advancement.

Bankers
The Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers
and has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when

necessary.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Service Providers

The Group's good relationships with its key service providers are
important in our provision of effective and efficient services as well
as meeting business challenges and regulatory requirements. The
key service providers provide professional services to the Group

which are key to our success.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the

year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company

are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 53 to 54 and in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2020:
HKSNil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group is engaged in investment holding for medium to
long-term capital appreciation purposes, and investment in listed
and unlisted securities, there are no major customers and suppliers

during the year.

16  Annual Report % 3R 2021

¥BEE(E)

AR 3% 12 4

Ak EEEEZ RS RUENORIFBEERMR
HEBRY EHEEAB RS TEEREM S

THEZ - ZERFRERHEBSAEEREHIXR
BREMKINERIR -

M3 BB &RE
BRNE BEMRRBRAFEZE
ARA M IMRM I3 -

BN

&N
ARRBZEEREBITRAFHITEHT
FRMFEE21

LR B TS

#E

AEERARTRAFE L EERDHEH IR
RESIBSAA 2 A BHBDEREAMBRE
BtaE22 o

Al 2 Ik fe 8
F_ngi A=+—

= ?i% p= /N
WEAISKRTREZFE (ZE=2F: 2

TE:THIT)

NG

FEEFRHER
HRAEREZZBRFERENESTHERY
BABE UARRENREMRIFLTES Bt
RAFRELIBEIERF RHER-



China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEBERBERABTHRFECEEUNLREERS
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 128. This EME KN F 1285 « I E W NEK KB XLA
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial B FE AR —F 5o o

statements.

DIRECTORS =
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date RAFEARBEARE BB AARESLOT :

of this report were:

Executive Director HITES

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee PREZETE

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Han Zhenhai (appointed on 20 January 2021) BIEBEE (RZFEZ—F—H=-1THEZ(F)
Ms. Yang Xiaogju BB L

Mr. Tom Xie (retired on 29 September 2020) EELE (R=FE-—FF A=+ HREE)
Mr. Yan Peng (appointed on 13 November 2020) B BE4E (RZFE-FF+—H1=HEZE)
Ms. Li Jiangtao (appointed on 17 June 2021) FERRT (RZFE-_—FNA++HEZE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Li Li (resigned on 1 September 2020) T NEE(R-ZFE-ZFFNHA—HEE)

Mr. Lai Yuen Piu RIRFEE

Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (resigned on 17 June 2021) RERZ T (RZFZ—F A ++HEFE)

Mr. Deng Dongping (appointed on 13 November 2020) BRI EE (RZF_FF+—HAT=HEZF)
Mr. Liu Lihan (appointed on 11 March 2021) BIVERE (RZBFE-—F=H1—HEZ)
Ms. Mo Li (appointed on 17 June 2021) R At (R-ZF-Z—FE~AT+HEZHE)

Directors respectively subject to retirement or rotation at the IRIEZARR RIAIEIE 4B F 12006 & 215315 - ER
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company in accordance AR RIEEREBFA S EHRIETkRESRE
with Bye-law 120 and Bye-law 153 of the Company's Bye-laws and MAEREEEETNES BEHNSTHTET
eligible for re-election thereat will be contained in a circular to be NG IR AYHE KA ©

separately issued to the shareholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 8 to 12 of the

annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions held by
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the “SFO") as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were

as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EERGREEERRE

ARBEERAEBESAEEE 2 BESHNASE
WEBE12H ©

EERFTETBRAERKRS - HER®D
RE#ER R

R-B_—F=ZH=+—H - EFERAQATE
THRABRARBRERBZE (ERXRAESFK
HEEA ([EH R E G EXVER) 2 ki
RN REERZETHEACTARRRRER S
KEAE WGP E35216 BT B 2 B e fitt 2 # 2k FOR
BOBRE LRI EHBEITAES
ETERRXGORET(RETHDERT
HEARRLREBBMEXSMERAR (B
Frl) 2 s RORRINT :

ARmkin KB D ZHR

Number of shares/underlying shares held

FrsRG,/ RARGHA
Number of shares Approximate
Number of issuable on share percentage of
Name of Director Capacity in which interests are held shares held options held Total interests shareholding
FiBREZ ERER L
Espg EERZEZIH FERAHE  TRTROHE aEs BOl
(Note)
(Hit)
Ms. Yang Xiaogjiu Beneficial owner 28,400,000 = 28,400,000 2.24%
BERLL BEulaA
Note: Mt -

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the Company’s issued
share capital of 1,269,785,729 shares as at 31 March 2021.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, the following persons, other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company, were interested or had short
positions in more than 5% of the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

EERFTETBRAERKRS - HER®D
REREER (F)

BEXBEAN R-B=—F=A=+—8"
EEAARAEBTHA BBMARA AR
AR A (2% 53 % R A I FEXVED) 2
Bip MR G R EEET HHCRAKAR
RIRE S R OISR BT B 2 B M o
RIBIETAIE B1TAE AL 7 RBIA 2
Sk -

FERR

R-B-_—F=ZA=+—HB BREFHAQAE
ZITHABIN HIREE S RIS R F 3361578
FEZBLMARE A AR AN RAEAK
5%A ERE SRR Z AL

Approximate

Capacity in which Number of percentage of

Name of shareholder interests are held shares held shareholding

1 IR R

BREE BB FEREZEH FiEROEE BoL

(Note 1)

(Kt 1)

Mr. Tse Tong Lam Antonio Beneficial owner 154,000,000 12.13%
Tse Tong Lam Antoniot A4 EnEEA

Micah Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 109,188,000 8.60%
Micah Holdings Limited (#73#2) EREAA

Ms. Ji Jie (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 109,188,000 8.60%

TR L (Hat2) REAE
Notes:
1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the Company’s

issued share capital of 1,269,785,729 shares as at 31 March 2021.

2. Micah Holdings Limited, a private limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, and wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Ji Jie.

ot

1. BEAOLDNEARANR_-_ZE-_—F=A=+—
A2 B B1TARZAN1,269,785, 7298 AR i 5T E 15 H

2. Micah Holdings Limited &7 & & # R & & 5 it X
NZTANBRAR BFERERRT L2 EEMES -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Company was
not notified of any persons, other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, having any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the AGM held on 28 December 2018, the terms of a new
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) were adopted by providing
incentive to eligible participants to work better for the interests of
the Group, under which the Board may, at its discretion, offer to
grant an option to any full-time or part-time employee and directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and service providers of

the Group (collectively the “Grantees”).

The old share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) adopted by
the Company by ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company on 9 April 2009 was terminated and replaced by the
Scheme at the AGM held on 28 December 2018. Details of the Old
scheme are shown in note 23 to the to the consolidated financial

statements.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on the date of adoption of
the Scheme. The total number of shares which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the Scheme to
each Grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors. If the Board proposed to grant options to a substantial
shareholder or any independent non-executive Director or their
respective associates which will result in the number of shares to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant, representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in
issue on the date of grant and having an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5 million, based on the closing price of the shares at the
date of each grant, such further grant of options will be subjected

to the shareholders’ approval in general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the offer date or within such other period of time as may
be determined by the Board. Upon acceptance of the options, the
Grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration
for the grant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any option granted
under the Scheme shall be priced as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, but must be at least the higher of () the
closing price of the Company's shares as quoted on the SEHK on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as quoted on the SEHK for the five consecutive business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of a share of the Company.

The period during which an option may be exercise will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion. An option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted
and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date.
The shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an option will not
carry voting rights until the completion of the registration of the

Grantee.

No share option under the Scheme were granted or exercised

during the year nor remained outstanding as at 31 March 2021.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or of any other body corporate granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire

such rights in the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company was a party
during or at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their
respective associates had any interest in a business which causes or
may cause a significant competition with the business of the Group
and any other conflict of interests which any such person has or
may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

was entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and subject to the provisions
of the statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable
for any loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to or be
incurred by the Company in the execution of the duties of his office
or in relation thereto, provided that the Bye-law shall only have
effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda
Companies Act. The Company has maintained Directors and

officers liability insurance during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES
During the year, the Company had not purchased, sold or

redeemed any of its securities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 6 (2020: 7) full time employees
(exclusive of directors). The Group's total staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration) amounted to approximately HK$2,791,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$3,357,000). The
employees were remunerated based on their responsibilities and

performance.

The Company has adopted the model set out in Code Provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its remuneration
model for determining the emoluments of the Directors. This
model stipulates that the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee would take into consideration, among
other things, the duties and responsibilities of the Directors and
senior management and prevailing market conditions when

determining their remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme to provide
incentives to eligible persons, including Directors, employees,

consultants, suppliers and customers of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
of the Company or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing

shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Amongst other
duties, the principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control of
the Group. The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Yuen Piu, Mr. Deng Dongping,
Mr. Liu Lihan and Ms. Mo Li, and Mr. Lai is the Chairman. The
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2021 have been audited by BDO Limited ("BDO"),
whose term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the AGM.
A resolution to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company will be
proposed to the shareholders of the Company for approval at the
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Han Zhenghai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B ER WD AT

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2021 was Nil
(2020: Nil), which remained unchanged when compared with that
of last year. The Group incurred a loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company amounting to approximately
HK$15,450,000, which decreased by approximately HK$37,091,000
or 70.6% when compared with the loss of approximately
HK$52,541,000 incurred in last year. The decrease in the loss for
the year was mainly attributable to the decrease in administrative
expenses and the increase in change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss during the year under review.
The net asset value per share of the Group as at 31 March 2021
amounted to HK$0.04 (2020: HK$0.04). The Board has decided not

to declare a final dividend for the year.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
As at 31 March 2021, the details of all investments of the Group

were summarised as below:

Interests in an associate - unlisted equity securities

MK LA
BE-_ZT-—F=-A=Z1+—BLEFE FAKEHK
=RAT(ZTZZTF ) BEFRF-A5H
E AR RN RIHEA AL F E 518 4915,450,000
P IT B BT EE AR BT 18 4952,541,00078 TR 4 49
37,091,000 7. 5k70.6% - F EE BB LTI EEH
REEFERNTEASRD RIERAFEFALRE
HEREBZMEEEZ AFESESIE IR R =
T F=A=1+—RH A5EEREEFER
QUB T (ZZE_ZTF 0048 L) cEE AT
ERAFESRARARKE -

BrEAS
R-E-_—F=ZA=1+—H AEBMEREH
ISR

R—EBERATA R -FLTREIES

Percentage
Place of of effective  Proportion of
Name of investee company incorporation/operation interest held  voting power Cost  Carrying value
RSy 153 5+
RXRENFAEH SRR EE Bk RRELH A REE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THET
Bonicast Construction Material People’s Republic of China 49% 20% 5,958 -
(Beijing) Co., Ltd ("PRC")
SEBEREMH (AR)BRRA  HEARANE ([HE])
Annual Report 3% 2021 25



China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

26

Investment in convertible bonds

RrREEE (&)

(i) RERITRRES

BRAVEFACRERECUKREE

Name of investee companies Place of incorporation Cost Carrying Value
EZIREARER o it B 3L 3t B D% BREIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THTT THTT
Guanwan Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 20,000 9,749
BEREAR AR REERES
Investment in Hong Kong listed equity securities (i) RERBEBLTREES
Number of Percentage of
Name shares held interest held Cost Market value
8 FEROBE FEESEESH B WiE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Asia Television Holdings Limited 235,510,000 2.37% 10,355 8,949
EMNERERBR LA
Golden Ponder Holdings Limited 37,560,000 4.70% 4,883 9,766
EmERERDA
Financial guarantee (i) BAESHER
Carrying
Guarantor Cost Value
BRA B IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET T
Han Zhenghai 253 253

Eha
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B ER WD AT

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)
(iv) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income

REME (E)
BAFPENAEREREHBEE (4

(iv) BAFEFAEHMEEREEE 2 HE
&E

Percentage of

Place of effective
Name of investee company incorporation interest held Cost Carrying Value
s B
BRIRENTER LA AR L 3t B BEEDL B REE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THIT
Tianjin Bao Xin Ying Precious Metals PRC 12.00% 6,590 4130
Management Limited
RRERRESEBRERAR AT hE
GuangZhou Shi Da Jian Corporate PRC 11.59% 9,800 5,286
Management Consulting Limited
EMTERCRERRAFTRAF P E
Huge Leader Investment Development Limited BVI 1.00% 556 -
REERES

Further details of all investments of the Group are included in note

15 to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$8,504,000 (2020: approximately HK$2,303,000).
The Group had the net current assets and the net assets of
approximately HK$39,902,000 (2020: HK$32,344,000) and
approximately HK$49,331,000 (2020: HK$41,070,000) respectively as
at 31 March 2021. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no bank
and other borrowing as at 31 March 2021.

The current ratio, calculated on the basis of total current assets
over total current liabilities, was approximately 8.71 (2020: 7.67) as
at 31 March 2021.

BRAAKREE2EREZE - FFBIANEAME
R TISEMIFE7

MHRERRRBES
RZZE-_—F=A=+—H AEFEFHES
&84 ZE Y 48,504,000 T (ZE T F:
#12,303,0008 L) R -_BE-—F=fF=+—
A AEEZRBEEFEREEFED AL
39,902,000 7T ( — & = T 4 : 32,344,000 7T )
K #749,331,0007% 7T ( = F = = 4F : 41,070,0007%
) BEXHEEEIN RZE-_—F=Zf=+—
B AEETEBTREGBERS-

RZEZ—F=A=+—HB "8t x (&R
BERERURSABRAETE)NE87I(ZE
ZTE 7 67)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W AT

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details in the changes of the capital structure of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements. The capital of the Company

comprises only ordinary shares as at 31 March 2021.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the business transactions of the Group are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The management of the Group
will closely monitor the fluctuation in these currencies and take
appropriate actions when needed. As at 31 March 2021, the Group
did not engage in currency hedging nor did it adopt any formal
hedging activities. The Group had not entered into any financial
derivatives in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars during the

year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, there were no charges on the Group's assets

and the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

STAFF COST

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 6 (2020: 7) full time employees
(exclusive of directors). The Group's total staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration) amounted to approximately HK$2,791,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$3,357,000). The
employees were remunerated based on their responsibilities and

performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B ER WD AT

PROSPECT

During 2020-2021, the Group successfully got through the
challenges of the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic. Along with
the mitigation of the novel coronavirus pandemic, the business
environment is expected to drive the financial markets to grow
significantly. As regards the global economy, it is expected that an
increase in economic activities in the rest of 2021 may be led by the

pent-up demand from 2020.

In December 2020, the Central Economic Working Conference
convened and pointed out that the macro-economic policy in 2021
would struggle to advance continuity, stability and sustainability;
and proactive fiscal policies and steady monetary policies would
provide necessary support for economic recovery. Given that
China’s economy presents its great potential, its economic
prospect remains positive, and the potential of investment demand
remains significant in the Global market. In the coming financial
year, the Group will adopt a more enterprising attitude on seeking
potential business opportunities in the market. In addition,
the Group's investment strategy will explore more diversified
investment opportunities with various industries. The Group is
aiming at implementing an efficient and compliant internal control,
pragmatically deploying its investment strategy, and strengthen
its financial situation in order to bring favorable return to our
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of
the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the

year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
7 December 2020 (the “Announcement”) in relation to the Placing.
Unless otherwise stated, terms used in this section shall have the

same meanings as defined in the Announcement.

EVE

Al =
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 7 December 2020, the Company and the Placing Agent entered
into the Placing Agreement for the placing of up to an aggregate
of 211,600,000 new Shares to the Placees at the Placing Price of
HK$0.101 per Placing Share. The completion of the Placing took
place on 23 December 2020. The net proceeds from the Placing,
after deduction of all relevant expenses, was approximately

HK$20.4 million, which were used as below:

(i) Approximately HK$18,500,000 was used for investment in the
listed securities; and

(i)  Approximately HK$1,900,000 was used for general working
capital of the Group.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE AUDITOR'S
OPINION

The auditor of the Company, BDO Limited (the “Auditor”), had
disclaimed their opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021. Reference is made
to pages 46 to 50 of this Annual Report.

View of the Audit Committee and the Board on the
auditor’s opinion

In the “Events after the reporting period” session (note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements), it was stated that on 28 June
2021, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party by which the Group agreed to
sell, and the buyer agreed to buy 1% (representing 1 owned
share) of equity interest in Huge Leader for a cash consideration
of HK$50,000. As the consideration for disposal of equity interest
in Huge Leader falls below 70% of their respective fair value as at
31 March 2019, the chairman of the Group is required to pay a total
amount of shortfall of HK$264,000 (after taking into account the
considerations received) to the Company under the terms of the

Deed of Indemnity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W DA

As all the investments in Huge Leader and Golden Resources have
been disposed of (17% of equity interests in Huge Leader and all
equity interests in Golden Resources were disposed of in June 2020
and the remaining 1% equity interest in Huge Leader was disposed
of on 28 June 2021), the Group does not have any investment in
Huge Leader and Golden Resources on the date of this annual
report. The audit committee and the board of directors of the
Company are of the view the issue giving rise to the disclaimer of

opinion has been addressed and resolved.

Actions to address the disclaimer of opinion

As stated above, since all of the Group’s investment in Huge
Leader and Golden Resources were disposed of by 28 June 2021,
the Group will not have any investment in Huge Leader and Golden
Resources and thus the underlying issues leading to the disclaimer
of opinion will not exist as at 31 March 2022. Hence, the Audit
Committee and the Board are of the view that there will not be
disclaimer of opinion in this regard but only qualified opinion on
the comparative figures for the year ending 31 March 2022; and
there will no longer be any qualified opinion in this regard for the
year ending 31 March 2023. The auditors of the Company confirm
that they concur with the above view of the Audit Committee and
the Board.

MR E H EHuge LeaderflGolden Resources
B FT B E (Huge Leaderf)17%M% 4 FMGolden
Resources%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁ“_%_%E/\_\H i
% ' Huge Leaderfh T1%%# 2 R —FR
RZ+NBHE) AKERAF®RABIERR
Huge LeaderfllGolden ResourcesfE i £ (1% & °
RARBREZEENESERAENEERTE

777

AOBEE RS EIEMER -
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0 EFril - AR AN S B ¥ Huge LeaderX Golden
ResourcesFT AR EE RN T _—F A=+ /\H
AT S - AEE KT g $Huge Leader&Golden
ResourcesH AR E ER#HBE=ZT——_F=H
=T—H BT FaEREEREELNE
EH-A BRZLZEEREFERA A HK
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ER REEZE-_=F=A=+—HLEE"
HTABEAMAZITENEGERER AR AR
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The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance
practice of a listed company and is committed to adopting the
standards of corporate governance. It is in the interest of the
shareholders and stakeholders for a listed company to operate in
a transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory
policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms with a clear
definition of accountability of directors and management. The
Company and the Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge,
that the Company has complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 March 2021, except for the
following deviations:

The code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that the
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors, as equal board members, should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Xie Tom and Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie were
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 29 September 2020 due to other important engagement.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board comprises one executive Director, namely, Mr. Chan
Cheong Yee; four non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Han
Zhenghai (Chairman of the Board), Ms. Yang Xiaogiu, Mr. Yan Peng
and Ms. Li Jiangtao; and four independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lai Yuen Pui, Mr. Deng Dongping, Mr. Liu Lihan and
Ms. Mo Li.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, investment
and strategic decisions and performance. The executive Board,
investment manager and senior management have been delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day
operations of the Group while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board committees. Further details of
these Board committees are set out in this Corporate Governance

Report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board and has met recommended practice under
the Code for the Board to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. The biographical
information of the existing Directors is set out on pages 8 to 12
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and

Senior Management”.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Chairman

The Chairman of the Company takes the lead in formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Group; ensures the effective
performance by the Board of its functions, including compliance
with good corporate governance practices and encourages and
facilitates active contribution of Directors in Board activities. The
Chairman also ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings and have received adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner with the

assistance of the company secretary.

Executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. They lead the
Group’'s management team in accordance with the directions set
by the Board and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal
control system is in place and the Group's business conforms to

applicable laws and regulations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors serve the important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance framework. Their
participations provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders. The Board consists
of four independent non-executive Directors and each of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive
Directors are financially independent from the Company. The
Company confirmed with all independent non-executive Directors
as to their independence with reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings during the year

ended 31 March 2021 was as follows:

EEg (&)
Exees

HE_ZT_—F=-A=+—HLEE &

EEgea2hFRENT

EER

Number of meetings

attended/held

Name of Director EEpR HEBITEREA

Executive Director HITES

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BREELE 15/15

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Han Zhenghai (appointed on 20 January 2021) BIEREE (RZEZ—F 5/8
— A=+ HEZFE)

Mr. Yang Xiaogiu HEMKZ 15/15

Mr. Tom Xie (retired on 29 September 2020) HEERE (R-FE—ZFF 6/6
NAZFNERE)

Mr. Yan Peng (appointed on 13 November 2020) Blsrd (R-FEZF 5/5
+—AT=HEZE)

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Li Li (resigned on 1 September 2020) ZHEE (RZF-FF 5/5
A —HEHE)

Mr. Lai Yuen Piu R A 13/13

Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (resigned on 17 June 2021) RERLZLT (RZFZ—4F 13/13
NA T+ HEFEF)

Mr. Deng Dongping (appointed on 13 November 2020) BRFEE (R=ZF=F 5/5
+—A+ :5%535/59

Mr. Liu Lihan (appointed on 11 March 2021) BISERE (RZFE=——4F 0/0

=A+—HEZHE)
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DIRECTORS' TRAINING

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the company
secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors.
All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum or training
courses on relevant topics which may count towards continuous
professional development training.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the “"Corporate Governance
Code”, Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. For the period from 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021, all Directors participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities either by attending training
courses or by reading materials relevant to the Company'’s business

or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

The company secretaries Mr. Chan Kwan Pak and Mr. Wong Ming
Chuen are service providers. They fulfill the requirement under
rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The company secretaries
report to the Chairman and support the Board, ensure good
information flow within the Board and Board policy and procedures
are followed; advise the Board on governance matters, facilitate
induction and, monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors. Each of them has attained not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the review period.

INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance, with
coverage being reviewed annually, to indemnify the Directors and
officers from their risk exposure arising from corporate activities.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

In respect of regular board meetings, an agenda and accompanying
board papers of the meeting are sent in full to all directors in
advance before the intended date of a meeting. The management
has the obligation to supply the Board and the various Board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to
enable the members to make informed decisions. Each Director
has separate and independent access to the Group's senior
management to acquire more information than is volunteered by

management and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Yuen Piu, Mr. Deng Dongping, Mr. Liu
Lihan and Ms. Mo Li, and is chaired by Mr. Lai Yuen Piu. The Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year. The Audit Committee
is mainly responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures; making
recommendations to the Board in the appointment and removal of
the external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditors; and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of such auditors; and reviewing the interim
and annual reports and the financial statements of the Group. The

terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.
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REERNRER: REAAKET AR FERS A
REATEMR - BAEEBENA R R AEUE A HER] -

The attendance of each member at Audit Committee meetings &HZEZE—_ZT-_—F=A=+—HIEFE SKEH
during the year ended 31 March 2021 was as follows: FEZEZEgERIHBNT:
Number of meetings
attended/held
Name of Committee Member E ] HE THEEREE
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu RRFEE 4/4
Mr. Li Li (resigned on 1 September 2020) THEE (RZF-FF 2/3
JLH—HEHF)
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (resigned on 17 June 2021) RERLZLT (RZF=Z—4F 4/4
/\ﬁ#’fﬂﬁ?ﬁ:)
Mr. Deng Dongping (appointed on 13 November 2020) BRFEE (RZFE-FF 1/1
+—HF+=HEZF)
Mr. Liu Lihan (appointed on 11 March 2021) BEEE (RZFZ—F 0/0

ZHtT—HEZL)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Yuen Piu, Mr. Deng Dongping
Mr. Liu Lihan and Ms. Mo Li, and is chaired by Mr. Lai Yuen Piu.
The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's remuneration
policy for Directors and senior management, and overseeing
the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
senior management. The terms of reference are available on the

Company's website.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee has considered and approved
the Group's policy for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive Directors and considered the
remuneration package of executive Directors by reference to the
prevailing packages with companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are
disclosed on an individual basis in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group adopts a competitive remuneration
package for its employees. Promotion and salary increments are

assessed based on a performance related basis.

The attendance of each member at Remuneration Committee
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021 was as follows:

FMzsg (&)
FHZEECERNERAKEEZ RS MEE
EHMER - FHRESEHERTESZRR
WRSERMZAER EM AR ZRITHEME R
HITESZHMFE - ERES ZHMFRB R
EMBHRRMEABRE-AEELSHEERANA
B 2 HIN AT B o T R N R R AR RE R 3R
REEEITRHE -

BHE T —F=A=+—HILFE JZKEH
FHMWEZReeRLENT

Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of Committee Member ZEERERSA HE AHEEEEA
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu R EE 5/5
Mr. Li Li (resigned on 1 September 2020) EHEE (RZF-FF 1/2
JLH—HEHF)
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (resigned on 17 June 2021) RERLZLT (RZF=—4F 5/5
NAtEHAFT)
Mr. Deng Dongping (appointed on 13 November 2020) BRIPELE (RZFE-FF 2/2
+—HF+=HEZF)
Mr. Liu Lihan (appointed on 11 March 2021) BISTESEE (RZF=Z—4F 0/0

ZHA1T—HEZE)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of four independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Yuen Piu, Mr. Deng
Dongping, Mr. Liu Lihan and Ms. Mo Li as well as the Chairman
of the Board and non-executive Director Mr. Han Zhenghai,
and is chaired by Mr. Han Zhenghai. The primary function of
the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Group's
corporate strategy. The terms of reference are available on the

Company's website.

38  Annual Report 3§ 2021

REEE"
REZBEMNABLIFNTESARER TS
BREEE BVERERREFRZIUAREES
ITRRIFPTESFBIEBREER Y HELS
EEEEREFE -REZECEIZRERETFRA
EXZSEB ABRER YHESTSZEME
RNBREHRER ALSAKREDRRA LR
BEENARB @A HER -



China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued) REEEG (&)
The attendance of each member at Nomination Committee &ZE—ZT-_—F=A=+—HLEFE SKEH
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021 was as follows: FREZESSZ LM
Number of meetings
attended/held
Name of Committee Member ZESHERR HE AHEEREAE
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu R A 4/4
Ms. Yang Xiaogjiu B+ 4/4
Mr. Li Li (resigned on 1 September 2020) ZHEE (R=ZF-FF 0/1
JLH—HEFHF)
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (resigned on 17 June 2021) RERZT (RZF=-—F 4/4
NA T HFE)
Mr. Deng Dongping (appointed on 13 November 2020) HRELEE (R=ZFZFF 0/0
=4 :Eﬁiff)
Mr. Han Zhenghai (appointed on 11 March 2021) BRIEBEE (RZFEZ—F 0/0
ZA+—HEZE)
Mr. Liu Lihan (appointed on 11 March 2021) B EEE (RZFZ—F 0/0
=H+—HEZE)
DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY EERBEE

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the AARBNERESSHEEEFENER K5
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of FZT{bEIBL FHEERITARRR) 2 ETFRE &
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its TEEZ Z HBUEE-

business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

S0
3
i3S
Qi
o

The Nomination Committee shall consider, among others, the TEFFEFIBEBEESREAR ERZE
following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for (EFEIE) A NER]:

directorships:
e Character and integrity; o R FNE(Z

e Personal attributes including professional qualifications, skills, o  {EABM - BIFHEAR QG EEN A 5 KA

knowledge, experience and expertise that are relevant to the R EEER Rig ME KRMEZXM
Company's business and corporate strategy, and the ability BOAREREEBRBEMREEEBNERS
to provide insights and practical wisdom based on those Zmae N

attributes;

e Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge dutiesasa ¢ f(FAEZ@XKE ETEMEERU -BH

Board member, other directorships, memberships of various ZEEeXENBEBEMNES BEIRKAZHAN
committees and significant commitments; REBITEE
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (continued)

e  For independent non-executive directors to be appointed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the

independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

e Ability to develop a good working relationship with other
Board members and contribute to the Board’s working

relationship with senior management of the Company;

e  Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted

by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board; and

e Any other perspectives appropriate to the Company's

business.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and

educational background, or professional experience.

A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit while taking

into account diversity (including gender diversity).

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption. The Nomination
Committee will report annually, in the corporate governance report,
on the Board's composition under diversified perspectives, and

monitor the implementation of this policy.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee consists of the executive
Director Mr. Chan Cheong Yee and four independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Yuen Piu, Mr. Deng Dongping, Mr. Liu
Lihan and Ms. Mo Li, and is chaired by Mr. Chan Cheong Yee. The
primary function of the Risk Management Committee is to review,
monitor, manage and control the existing investments, developing
and reviewing the risk management policy and monitoring the

effective running of the risk management.

The attendance of each member at Risk Management Committee

meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021 was as follows:

EREEESS

EREEZEEHNTEETREELLENNEE
UIEMITER (REREL BRFLLE FE
EEREFZ LA YHRESEEEEET
F-RREERESTEMERRT EiE B1E
REFBRBRE AT REBGRREERR R
EERBREENERERE-

BE-_ZT-_—F=A=+—HItFE &KE L
FREEEZESSZHLHEMAT:

Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of Committee Member ZESHEER HE FHEEEEE
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REELE 2/2
Mr. Lai Yuen Piu RRF&EE 2/2
Mr. Li Li (resigned on 1 September 2020) THEE (RZFE-FF 0/2
JLH—HEHF)
Ms. Leung Mei Hing Carrie (resigned on 17 June 2021) PEPL L (R=ZF=Z—F 2/2
/\ﬁ#’fﬂﬁ?ﬁ:)
Mr. Deng Dongping (appointed on 13 November 2020) BRFEE (RZFE-FF 0/2
+—A+=HEZT)
Mr. Liu Lihan (appointed on 11 March 2021) BEEE (RZFZ—F 0/2

ZHtT—HEZL)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, which includes developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies, practices on corporate governance, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements etc. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the Company's policies and

practices on corporate governance.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
consolidated financial statements for each financial period
and to ensure that the consolidated financial statements are in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors, having made
appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. The statements of the auditor of the Group regarding
their responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 46 to 50 of this
Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the
system of internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the assets of the Group. Procedures have been designed
to safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition, to
ensure the sufficient allocation of resources and manpower and
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
to ensure compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations.
The procedures provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance
and prevention of material untrue statements or losses, as well
as management on the interruption of the Group’s management
system and risks existing in the course of arriving at the Group's

objectives.

The management of the Group has conducted a review on the
Group's internal control and risk management system for the
year ended 31 March 2021 with no material weakness found. The
management will continue to improve and strengthen its control
in order to enhance the corporate governance and safeguard the

interest of its shareholders.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company's auditor, BDO Limited, for audit service of the year
ended 31 March 2021 is HK$480,000 and there is no non-audit
service provided during the year ended 31 March 2021.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the

Model Code throughout the year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

Subject to the Bye-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations,
the Company may in a general meeting by ordinary resolution elect
any person to be a director of the Company either to fill a casual

vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.

A shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
may propose a person (the “Candidate”) other than a Director of
the Company for election as a director at a general meeting by
lodging the following documents at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong (Room 3702, 37/F., 118 Connaught Road
West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong) for the attention of the company

secretary:

1. A written notice signed by the shareholder concerned which
is given of his/her intention to propose the Candidate for

election;

2. A written notice signed by the Candidate indicating his/her
willingness to be elected, together with the Candidate’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and

3. The Candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her

personal data.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director (continued)

The period for lodgment of the above documents shall have
given to the company secretary of the Company during a period
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and

ending no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Special general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more registered members of the Company
deposited at the registered office in Bermuda specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting,
the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meetings provide a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of
the Company as well as the chairman and members of various
Board committees are pleased to answer shareholders’ questions.
Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors. Details of poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are included in the circular to
shareholders despatched together with the annual report. The
circular also includes relevant details of proposed resolutions,
including biographies of each candidates standing for re-election.
The results of the poll are published on the Company's website,
and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
(http://www.hkex.com.hk).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year under review, the Group has proactively
enhanced its corporate transparency and communications with
its shareholders and the investment community through the
announcement of its mandatory interim and final reports. Through
the timely distribution of other announcements, the Group has also
kept the public abreast of its latest developments.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
55 1 +852 2218 8288 EEFHEER1115E
55K : +852 2815 2239 KZ251

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA INVESTMENT
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Investment Development Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 127,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter
described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYRBARE S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 March 2020, the Group held 18% equity interests in
Huge Leader Investment Development Limited (“Huge Leader”)
and 14% equity interests in Golden Resources Asia Limited
("Golden Resources”) which were determined as unquoted equity
instruments and accounted for as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income. On 24 June 2020 and
26 June 2020 respectively, the Company entered into two sale and
purchase agreements, pursuant to which the Company disposed
of 17% (representing 17 out of 18 shares owned by the Group)
and 14% (representing all 140 shares owned by the Group) of
equity interests in Huge Leader and Golden Resources for a cash
consideration of HK$762,000 and HK$816,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the directors of the
Company lost contact with the management of Huge Leader
and Golden Resources and were unable to obtain any financial
information of Huge Leader and Golden Resources. Previously,
each of Huge Leader and Golden Resources had an indirectly held
operating subsidiary. During the financial year ended 31 March
2020, the directors of the Company found out that these two
operating subsidiaries were no longer held by the subsidiaries of

Huge Leader and Golden Resources.

The directors of the Company measured the fair value of the
Group's interests in Huge Leader and Golden Resources as at
31 March 2020 based on the net assets values of Huge Leader
and Golden Resources as at 31 March 2019, which was the latest
available financial information of these two investee companies
and adjusted for the factors they considered might affect their
fair values, and assume that the two indirectly held operating
subsidiaries no longer formed part of the sub-groups of Huge
Leader and Golden Resources and no corresponding compensation
or consideration was received by Huge Leader and Golden
Resources sub-groups. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
estimated the fair value of the Group's interests in Huge Leader and
Golden Resources approximated to HK$nil as at 31 March 2020 and
recorded a decrease in fair value of HK$8,065,000 and HK$8,160,000
of investments in Huge Leader and Golden Resources respectively
for the year ended 31 March 2020 in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYRBARES

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)
During the course of our audit for the year ended 31 March 2020,
the directors of the Company did not provide us with the details
of their estimation of the fair value of these two investments as
at 31 March 2020, including reliable and supportable information
about the adjustments made to the net assets values of Huge
Leader and Golden Resources to arrive at the net assets values as
at 31 March 2020. We were therefore unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence we considered necessary to assess
the reasonableness of the directors’ estimation of the fair values
of the Group's interests in Huge Leader and Golden Resources
as at 31 March 2020. Accordingly, we issued a disclaimer of
opinion on the Company's consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “2020 Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recorded an
increase in fair value of HK$1,578,000 in respect of the Group's
interests in Huge Leader and Golden Resources in other
comprehensive income based on the sale consideration of
these two investments. As the limitation on scope of our work as
mentioned in the paragraph immediate above remained unresolved
during our current year audit, any adjustments to the fair values of
these two investments as at 31 March 2020 found necessary would:
(i) reduce the increase in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March
2021; (i) affect the elements making up the consolidated statement
of changes in equity; and (iii) affect the related disclosures
thereof in the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “2021 Consolidated
Financial Statements”). Our audit opinion on the Company’s 2021
Consolidated Financial Statements is also modified for the possible
effects of our disclaimer of audit opinion on 2020 Consolidated
Financial Statements on the comparability of the related current

year's figures and the comparatives.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYRBARE S

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The audit committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an
auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for

an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYRBARES

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Choi Kit Ying

Practising Certificate Number P07387

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
etk a2 Rk

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —F——F=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
[N FE T AT
Revenue e 7 = _
Other income H AUz A 7 1,043 90
Net loss on financial assets BATEFAEEBREREEZ
at fair value through profit or loss B EE 2 BiEF5E (8,723) (35,402)
Administrative and other expenses TBREAR (7,770) (11,851)
Finance costs B 5 A 2R = 21)
Share of result of the associate DB E R R EE 15 - (5,357)
Loss before income tax expense B FT1S 75 B X AT ES 18 9 (15,450) (52,541)
Income tax expense FrigBiA = 8 - -
Loss for the year attributable RATHEE NEEAREEER
to owners of the Company (15,450) (52,541)
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 W &
ltem that will not be reclassified TEEHHLEEERZER:
to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of financial assets BRAVESAEREMEE K
at fair value through other BB ZMBEEZ N TFE
comprehensive income =) 3,301 (23,194)
Other comprehensive income RELZEMDEE - HBRTIE
for the year, net of tax 3,301 (23,194)
Total comprehensive income for the year N4 [& 2 E U 25 4258 (12,149) (75,735)
Loss per share BRER 11
— Basic (HK cent per share) —HKX (B 1.38 4.97
- Diluted (HK cent per share) —#5E (ZRRB) 1.38 4.97
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RIR R

As at 31 March 2021 R=—E=-—%=A=+—H

2021 2020
B —F_FTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FTHET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WEREE 13 13 133
Interest in the associate NN v 15 - —
Financial assets at fair value through BAER AT EAM 2 E RS
other comprehensive income RIB BB EE 16 9,416 8,593
9,429 8,726
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAVEFATERRE
profit or loss MG EE 17 28,717 34,096
Other receivables, deposits paid and Hitnfg i z18  #e &
prepayments TERTRIE 18 146 794
Amount due from the shareholder JE W AR R R IR 19 7,713 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 20 8,504 2,303
45,080 37,193
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges Hitn eI IBE R BT E 5,178 4,849
5,178 4,849
Net current assets RBEEZE 39,902 32,344
Net assets EEFE 49,331 41,070
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of ARREEAELES
the Company
Share capital & 7 21 12,698 10,582
Reserves % 36,633 30,488
Total equity etk 49,331 41,070
On behalf of the directors REESE

Han Zhenghai
BIES
Director

EF
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERSER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

Investment Share
Share Share  Shareholder  revaluation option Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium  contribution reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RA RiPEE hR1E RESHEE BREGE B Gl ZithiE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL Thx TR TAL THL T TELT THL
(Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 22) (Note 22) (Note 22)
(W21) (M) (H22) (Mit2) (M)
At 31 March 2019 & 1 April 2019 R=Z-NE=A=+-BR
RZZ-NEMA-A 10,582 372,760 - 60,398) 65,781 (322) (282532) 105871
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (52,541) (52,541)
Other comprehensive income A 2ENR
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value BAFEA A2 AREREL
through other comprehensive income YREEZATERD - - - (23194) - - = (23.194)
Exchange difference arising from the associate REE-FHEATELE ENER
during the year (Note 15) (Hiz£15) - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year TEERANGEE = = = (23,194) = - (52,541) (75735)
Shareholder contribution RFETE - = 10934 = = = = 10934
Share options lapsed BRMERE - - - - (65,781) - 65,781 -
At 31 March 2020 WZZ-ZE=f=1-8 10,582 312,760 10934 (83592) - (322) (269,292) 41,070
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmSER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

Investment Share
Share Share  Shareholder  revaluation option Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium  contribution reserve reserve reserve losses Total

KA BfEE  KREE REE(EG BREGE EifiE  RHER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiEn TR TR TR FiEn TR TER

(Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 22) (Note 22) (Note 22)
(W21)  (K&22) (Wi22)  (W&22)  (W&E22)
At 31 March 2020 & 1 April 2020 R-g-2EzZAzt-AR
“Z2-ZEMA-H 10,582 372,760 10,934 (83,592) - (322) (269,292) 41,070
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (15,450) (15,450)
Other comprehensive income A 2ELNR
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value BAFEA N2 ARERE L
through other comprehensive income SEEZ ATEED - - - 3,301 - - - 3,301
Total comprehensive income for the year rEE2ENREE - - - 3,301 - - (15,450) (12,149)
Transfer of loss on disposal of financial asset BRNERATEF AL MZE
at fair value through other comprehensive WEREMBEENERE
income to retained eamings RBEF - - - 72,761 - - (72,761) -
Placing of new shares REHk 2,116 18,294 - - - - - 20410
At 31 March 2021 WZB--5=A=1-R 12,698 391,054 10,934 (7,530) s (322) (357,503) 49,331
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—B--F CZZT-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt THET T
Cash flows from operating activities RELEERZEERE
Loss before income tax expense M PTE R 2 AT ES 1R (15,450) (52,541)
Adjustments for: M TN EBEELFE:
Depreciation of property, M- BRERRETE
plant and equipment 9 38 144
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 9 = 1,917
Net realised loss on disposals of HERAFEFALER
fair value of financial assets BREZHBEEATEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SR ERFE 4,253 7,665
Bank interest income H]RITHBHA 7 (4) =
Dividend income % B A 7 (362) —
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGEZHERAX 9 = 21
Change in fair value of financial assets BATEAEEREEZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEZ N TEESD 4,470 27,737
Impairment loss on other Hib KW HIBR MRS
receivables and deposit paid VEREYEi=! 18 - 1,318
Impairment loss on interest in the associate FABE & A Bl 2 BEEE 15 - 357
Share of result of the associate DIEEE R A 2 EE 15 - 5,357
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE BB R&E K
plant and equipment (348) (20)
Operating loss before working EEESBDAZRERE
capital changes (7,403) (8,115)
Purchase of financial assets BERAFEFATERE
at fair value through profit or loss BrHBARE (34,724) (5,800)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R AFE AEEBLRE
as fair value through profit or loss B2 EE 2 TSHRIE 22,467 15,115
Decrease in other receivables, Hith fE IR 28 R TE
deposits and prepayments SRIERE D 648 566
Increase in other payables and Hib N IR N ERTE A
accrued charges byl 329 1,248
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (fr$E) FiBHE S (18,683) 3,014
Interest received 2 & 4 =
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEK () FBERE
operating activities HEE (18,679) 3,014
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
e R —ZE=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt THET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities RERETBHZEHERE
Dividend received 2R S 362 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME WMELELHEZ
plant and equipment Fr8 A 430 90
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ H&EZEAFEFF AL EMEE
at fair value through other WHRERIBZMBEEL
comprehensive income Fr18 578 2,478 =
Net cash generated from REEFBFFREFH
investing activities 3,270 90
Cash flows from financing activities REMETBHZHERE
Proceeds from shareholder contribution IR EE 2 TS s IA 1,200 =
Net proceeds from issue of new shares BITHRR 2 TSR IE S5 20,410 =
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEABEZASHD
lease liabilities - (1,917)
Interest paid on lease liabilities HEBBEZENFIE - (21)
Net cash generated from/(used in) METEME (FiE)Re
financing activities FE 21,610 (1,938)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B& &k H &S EYEINFE 6,201 1,166
Cash and cash equivalents FUEERESEEY
at beginning of year 2,303 1,137
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREBEERBEEEEY 8,504 2,303
Analysis of the balance of cash and ReRBSLEEYERDM
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents BehkB2EEY 8,504 2,303
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Investment Development Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 25 March 1998 and was de-registered
on 11 March 2011 and was registered by way of continuation
as an exempted company in Bermuda on 2 March 2011. The
Company's shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 12 December 2000. Its registered office is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal office in Hong Kong is located at Room 3702,
37/F,118 Connaught Road West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding
for medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes, and
investment in listed and unlisted securities. The principal
activities of the Company'’s subsidiaries are set out in note 14

to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 April 2020

Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts
reported in these consolidated financial statements
and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —ZF - —F=A=+—HItFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RSB EBREED ([FEBIHK
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) |ERER]) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) EEMERERERZIGELIERT

are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to

the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but

are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

by the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply

these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to

Accounting Guideline 5

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Interest Rate Benchmark

Reform-Phase 2'

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions?

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 20212

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-
2020°

Merger Accounting for
Common Control
Combinations?®

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
(amendments)®

Disclosure of Accounting
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to

Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

Disclosure of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction®

Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 17°

Presentation of Financial
Statements-Classification
by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand

Clause®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

4 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or

after a date to be determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

The directors of the Group anticipate that the application
of all other new and revised HKFRSs and Interpretations

will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements of the Group in the future.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

60

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange ("“Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), which are measured at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out

in note 4 below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). Each entity in the Group
maintains its books and record in its own functional

currency. The functional currency of the Company is HKS.

Annual Report F#f 2021

3. MREE

(a)

(b)

(c)

EREH
RAVBRRDEBRMAEREEY
BmEER FEGAER ([FEE
ERI) RBBAREBE RGN 2 &
BRERE M SAVBHRREE
B mEs LR (TERBRRDR
EZBEREKE-

ArEEE

AN S GEART B & AT BUR T AL - R
BUBHRERIIRBELRA L RS H
BAFEAERMEERREE ([
RFEFAEEMEEKSEE])
MBEERRATFEFAEBREE
(MRAFEFAERDRRE]) ZHHK
BE (AN ATERE)RI-

DERZIE
HAaMBREAET (BT Z5-
AEBERERUNELRG ZIEERT
RRRHE - ARRZINGEEE BB



China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., ERSHHEHME
POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

(a) ¥BEHRGEEEE

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition
or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of

the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities
and assets meets the definition of a business and control
is transferred to the Group. In determining whether a
particular set of activities and assets is a business, the
Group assesses whether the set of assets and activities
acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and substantive
processes and whether the acquired set has the ability to

produce outputs.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

62

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

(continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity

instruments in which case the costs are deducted from

equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit

or loss.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EXREFBHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

(a) XBEHRGFEEE(F)

(continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss
and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this
results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amount
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required

if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 Bl E=ZF = —

E=H=F—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

64

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
(i) power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (i) the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of

control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.

Associates

The associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those

policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group's share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised

unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Annual Report F#f 2021

4. EREHERME (&)

(b) MDA

(c)

MEBEARAARABAITHEZENE 2R
EQ%O?‘}/—\LAT%-& ZHERFEAIA
NEHREHSBREGE: ((HRE

HRBED: (||)ﬂ?x§ﬂ%27m@#&
ATERBR S ZAHER] R (iii) Al (£ A EL 42
NP EZFNE0H -HMEEFERBER
BNEMZESENEEZRLIRNEE A

BT R I -

RARBHBIRARA RIFBRRZ
RERKABRERBRE ()R-
MBARZEEBRARRRE W RE
YR BB AR

BE AT
BMERRRAEBEHEFEATEN
ZER MIIFEMBLARIRAERE-
BEATYENRBEEZ2ERTREHR
B TS EE UK 'fﬁﬂzﬁ?’&?%‘liﬁi#\ﬁ@
G

BERRNERESAAR Bt H
BRI ANER RRERAKED G
BERNREEFERBREGHEL
REE ETSRIBBBARENEZ
NEZEmZBE BRIFEREEEERX
EER-



China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate.
The investor's share in the associate's profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the

carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for the associate above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate and the
entire carrying amount of the investment is subject to
impairment test, by comparing the carrying amount with
its recoverable amount, which is higher of value in use

and fair value less costs to sell.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

66

POLICIES (continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of

the lease term or 4 years

Furniture and fixture 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Motor vehicle 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset's

estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in

profit or loss on disposal.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EXREFBHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

(e) Government grant

(e) BUFWRE

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets (including property, plant and
equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful

lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable and are
recognised as other revenue, rather than reducing the

related expense.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

68

(f)

Lease

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term
leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date have a
lease term of less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by
the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures the right-of-
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use assets at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the

lease term.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Lease (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group's

incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that is not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an

option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial instruments

70

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured

at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of

principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt

instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on

derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —F——F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)
FVTOCI:
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial

Assets that are held for collection of

assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCl. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified

to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as

effective hedging instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

72

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or
at FVTOCI, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition
it doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an

accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Company could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or
loss unless the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income

are recognised in profit or loss.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on other receivables measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either
of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is

exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation

to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for other receivables using HKFRS 9 general
approach and the ECLs are based on the 12-months
ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

74

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and

including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held): or (2) the financial asset is

more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the

gross carrying amount.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value,

net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including other
payables and accrued charges is subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter

period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

76

(v)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss for the year.

(h) Revenue recognition

Interest income is accrued on a timely basis on the

principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and

deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred
tax amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,

rather than through sale.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

78

(i)

)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") in which case the taxes are also

recognised in OCI.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services that are vested at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss with a

corresponding increase in the share option reserve within

equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of other assets

()

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

e Property, plant and equipment; and

. Investment in subsidiaries and the associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that

can be reasonably estimated.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Employee benefits

80

(n)

(i) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plans

Contributions to defined contribution retirement

plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss

when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and short-term deposits and highly liquid investments
with maturities of three months or less from the date
of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in
the management of its short-term commitments. For the
purpose of the statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and that form an integral
part of the Group's cash management are included in

cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BiE—Z =

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(o) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family

—F=A=+—AILFE

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel of

the Group or the Company'’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(i)  One entity is the associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or the associate or joint

venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is the associate of the third

entity.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

E=H=F—HLFE

4. EREHERME (&)

82

(o) Related parties (continued)

(o) BEAL(#&)

(b)

(continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

(i)

that person'’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future and other sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising
from the inability of its customers to make the required
payments. The impairment allowances are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected credit loss
rates. The Group makes its estimates based on the ageing
of its loan balances, customers’ creditworthiness, historical
write-off experience and existing market condition including
forward-looking estimates as at the reporting date. If the
financial condition of its customers was to deteriorate so that
the actual impairment loss might be higher than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis of making the

allowance and its future results would be affected.

Fair value of financial asset at FVTOCI and FVTPL

The Group classifies certain investments as financial asset
at FVTOCI and FVTPL whose fair value cannot be derived
from active markets. In the absence of an active market, the
directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for those financial instruments not quoted
in an active market. This value technique includes some
assumptions not supported by observable market prices and
rates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect

the reported fair value of financial instruments.

S5t

HRETHABRMET TS ERER
EERIR

RS HRE AT EARRTEREER
£ EREEE T — B REEHAAE R
2EMARZ EERRRMEIH A TRER
AR R T -

RIBREHE

AEBHRE P EEE NN AEGKIA MG
BB RELBEE RERBREE@EY
RBRAREREEBRXNRRTIR -AFE
BRBEFGEHNEEK TRPEEE BHE
M R B S IR B TORAE L A E (BRER®RE
B HI R0 A RE M A ET) 1M F P B B B AL
UBRERREBEEXESREN A5H
BRERFRBEEE ERREERKZE

=
=

BEAFPEFAEEMZEARSERERF
Bt \EERREBE2UBEENLAFE
AEEKETRE (HAFERELIEERED
SR ERRATFEFAEEMEEK
s RN FEFACBERREIMBEE-
HERRME ESEMRAB ARSI ER
BT HENM B TANEEE N [ERI-
MERNMEELEABREMSERLE XA
XFHNETRR ARZEEAZNRRED
FEFETMIAEZERATE.
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e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

6.

84

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may
earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the
basis of the internal management reporting information that
is provided to and regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief
operating decision maker in order to allocate resources and
assess performance of the segment. For the years ended
31 March 2021 and 2020, the information reported to the
executive directors, who are the chief operating decision
makers for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of performance, do not contain profit or loss information of
each business line or geographical area and the executive
directors reviewed the financial result of the Group as a whole
reported under HKFRSs. Therefore, the executive directors
have determined that the Group has only one single business
component/reportable segment as the Group is only engaged
in investment holding. The executive directors allocate
resources and assess performance on an aggregated basis.

Accordingly, no operating segment is presented.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
revenue and non-current assets including property, plant and
equipment and interest in the associate (i.e. “specified non-
current assets”) by geographical locations, determined based
on physical location of the assets or location of operations in

case of interest in the associate, is as follows:

DEER

K K8 AR B = P] BRERUR A R = AE
X2 EBFTB AR D IIRBEAREEE
TRERRERREREDREHNUNESRS
BERRMERBE 2 ABER S HERFZR -
HE_T-_-—Fr_ZT_TF-F=+—H
LEFE AR TES (ARERSEREKR
FEMEATEEERTE)REZEHT
BRESEBRI SR 2 EF S EBER
MATESZCEHNAEBREE BV HRE
HAS[|oERBYBEE - AL ATES
BEEEAEEES —EE—EBEXTS
ARESE REAAAEEELERELER-
WITESRATEESRERETHRSE -
Eit g E5kE-

TREHEZEEERUEXNEF SEMEL
(MBRBENF S BT HEMNE
D2 AKERSFIERBEE (BEWE
WEEREARREE AR 2 (B[4
EFRRBEE]) ) 2OWWMT:

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENREF 2 W E REFRDEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
“B--F _T-TF ZB--F _—T_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET FHET TET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BE (BEDE) S - 13 133
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7. WEREAMBA
2021 2020
=B —F T TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Revenue: U5 - = =
Other income: HAapA -
Bank interest income |RITH B WA 4 =
Dividend income % 2 A 362 =
Government subsidy BT 78 B 270 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BE K&H W
plant and equipment 348 90
Broker commission RN 55 -
Others Hith 4 =
1,043 90
Total revenue and other income ek K B b U A 48 58 1,043 90
No other source of income contributed to the Group's revenue RZZBZ—FR_ZZTF WEAEMEKA
for both 2021 and 2020. HOR AN = B 5 R 25
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z=—F=—F=A=+—HILtFE

8.

86

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

According to the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Bill 2017 which
was substantively enacted after passing its Third Reading
in the Legislative Council on 28 March 2018, the two-tiered
profits tax regime is first effective for the year of assessment
2018/19. Profits tax rate for the first HK$2 million of assessable
profits of corporations is lowered to 8.25% with the excess
assessable profits continue to be taxed at 16.5%. Overseas
tax is calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions. No provision for income tax expense is required
since the Group has no assessable profits either arising from

Hong Kong or other jurisdictions during the year (2020: Nil).

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before income tax expense per consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

B X
BER-_ZE—NFZA-_FT/N\BELES
BE-EAEELERN - —tFH%
(BB ER - MEHFEHEIER =
T—N\F/ —NEOFIBREEEXER -1
E¥ERAR N E2EEBLHRNEHHEEE
K E8.25% + B 1 B) B 3R Bii F) Bl 4 4B 4%
16.5%H R B MBIE B INHIBIR B B 8%
EERERAREAE AREAEERANFEL
=R A %;"éﬁﬁ@ﬁiﬂ%lﬁzm%ﬁiﬁﬂ :
WHAELAEHRAIBE (ZT=F
) o

$¢Fﬁﬁ SHAX GRS BEa REMEEK
BRARPISRASAERZ BRI T -

2021 2020

=B _T_TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FATT

Loss before income tax expense BRATISTIF X AT E R (15,450) (52,541)
Tax calculated at the applicable RBEREAEREGTHE 2BHIE

statutory tax rates (2,384) (8,504)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible DRI X 2 IS & = 4,635

Tax effect of revenue not taxable ARG 2 BB 677 =
Tax effect of temporary differences RERLREEINBLE

not recognised 6 592

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ KERRIBEE 2 R 1,701 3,277

Income tax expense FIiSBiA X S 5

No deferred tax asset or liability has been recorded on
temporary differences of approximately HK$4,173,000 (2020:
approximately HK$4,069,000) in the financial statements as
the tax effect of the temporary difference is immaterial to the

Group.
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

8.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8.
At the end of reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$210,508,000 (2020: approximately
HK$201,549,000) available for offset against future profits
that may be carried forward indefinitely. The tax losses are
subject to the final assessment of Hong Kong Inland Revenue

Department. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in

respect of the unused tax losses due to unpredictability of

future profit streams.

Frigsimas (&)
RBERAR AEEBERPARERS
18 #49210,508,0008 T (Z T T F: 4
201,549,000/ 7T) * AI K H AR e A - B Al
BERBAEE -HABRERTEREBET
& AT o RN AT TR AT R A0 MR & - 8
VERRBS AR BABRERELERAEE -

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. BRATEEMAXAIER
Loss before income tax expense is stated after charging the R PTS T 5 2 AT RS HIBR T 715 1812 51)BR
following:
2021 2020
=B —2-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHAIT
Staff costs 8T
Salaries e 1,770 1,684
Provident fund contributions wEe M 69 66
Total staff costs excluding directors’ BEINABEBE(TREEEMNE)
remunerations 1,839 1,750
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT 480 537
Depreciation e
Property, plant and equipment e R NG 38 144
Right-of-use assets EREEE = 1,917
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) EEMe (ME12) 952 1,607
Impairment loss on other receivables Hin e IB R E R REEE
and deposit paid - 1,318
Impairment loss on interest R—REE R AR RERER
in the associate - 357
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaBZMERX - 21
Investment manager's fee REKIEER = 550
Short-term leases EEHE 949 365
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

10. DIVIDENDS
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

11. LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is

based on the following data:

10.

T

R 2
EETRENBE_T-_—F=A=1—8
IFFERMEMRS (B -FF &)

BREE
ARBEBEERFBARGERERLES
BIETIRIATBIEE

2021 2020
=B —F T TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Loss Fi =1
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARG E SIRER LS
the Company for the purposes of BB 2 RN R BB AR
basic and diluted loss per share KEEEIE (15,450) (52,541)
Number of shares R4 E

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ ARG ESRER KEEER

shares for the purposes of basic and 2 E B INFE 8

diluted loss per share

1,115,578,606 1,058,185,729

Note:

(@)  The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year ended
31 March 2021 for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share have
been adjusted for the issue of shares during the year then ended and
placement of new shares being completed on 23 December 2020, as
detailed in note 21.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant

to Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

(Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of Information

(a) EEM =<

12. EERABBREHFALTZHE

RIEE B R AGRD (5F622F ) F3831%
AR (RBESNEER) R (£
622GE) TURBc ANFEEEME A

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) are as N
follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Fees piakry
Executive directors HITES 360 360
Non-executive directors EHITES 295 527
Independent non-executive directors BYUFNITES 297 720
952 1,607
Basic salaries and other benefits HAFH MEMEF - =
Contributions to retirement ROKEFET B R
benefit scheme - -
952 1,607

No directors had waived any emoluments and no

emoluments were paid to the directors as inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office during the year (2020: Nil).

RAFE BEESHETAME T
BREENEAME  (FREBIEN
AREB RN IARNE B 2 22E) - 5
ERERME (2 _FF :8) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z=—F=—F=A=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12.BEERTEREFAIZHME (&)
INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEM< (&)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2020: ENSENTE(ZEZEF : £R)E
seven) directors are as follows: EZBmT:
2021 —EgE-—F
Contribution
Salaries and to retirement
Fees other benefit scheme Total
E e B
e HivEF STERR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR FHT

Executive director HTES

Chan Cheong Yee REE 360 - - 360
Non-executive directors FYTES

Yang Xiao Qiu BB 120 - - 120
Tom Xie (note (vi) A (v 60 - - 60
Yan Peng (note (i) B (i) 46 - - 46
Han Zhenghai (note (ii) B2 108 (MFEG)) 24 - - 24
Deng Dongpong (note (i)) B (B aEG)) 46 = = 46

Independent non-executive directors B FHTES

Leung Mei Hing Carrie (note (iv)) ZEE (MEW) 120 - - 120
Lai Yuen Piu (note (iv)) R (M) 120 - - 120
Li Li (note (v)) = EA ) 50 S = 50
Liu Lihan (note (iii)) 21502 (KI5 6 - - 6

952 - - 952
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z=F=—F=A=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. EERAEREHFALTZME (&)
INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEM2 (&)
2020 —E-EF
Contribution
Salaries and  to retirement
Fees other benefit scheme Total
Hek RIS
ik H £ 7 SR @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR TAT

Executive directors YTES

Chan Cheong Yee REX 360 = = 360
Non-executive directors FHTES

Chen Yin (note (vii) B R (i) 100 - - 100
Yang Xiao Qiu BB 300 - - 300
Tom Xie (note (vi)) anar (FEE(vi)) 127 - - 127

Independent non-executive directors B FHTEE

Leung Mei Hing Carrie (note (iv)) REE (K7Ev)) 240 = = 240
Lai Yuen Piu (note (iv)) BR (M) 240 = = 240
Li Li (note (v)) Z h (W) 240 = = 240

1,607 - - 1,607
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
The number of directors whose remuneration fell within

the following band is as follows:

1. EERAEBEFALTZHME (&)

(a) EEMS (&)
MeNFUATHEZESAZNT :

2021 2020
=B —F T TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 10 7
Notes: BT -
()  Appointed on 13 November 2020. i) RZZE_TF+-—AT+=BEZE-
(i)  Appointed on 20 January 2021. (i) KZTB-_—F-A-t+HEZE-
(i) Appointed on 11 March 2021. iy W-BE-_—F=/+—-BAEZE-
(iv)  Appointed on 25 January 2019. vy R-E-NF-A-+HEAEZE-
()  Resigned on 1 September 2020. v R-ZT-_TFAA—AEHE-
(vi)  Appointed on 20 September 2019 and retired on 29 September vi) RIE—NENLA-TAEZERR_ZT—
2020. ZEAAZ+TNAEE-
(vii)  Retired on 30 August 2019. wi) RZT—AFENA=+ARE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12.EERAERBEHFALTZHE (&Z)

INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

(b) BEREFALTZHE

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals

(which include 1 director (2020: 1)) were as follows:

hEseHAL (EHeE—% (=%
TR CRER)ZMEWT

2021 2020
—E-— —E-TF
Basic salaries and other benefits AR kEMER 1,984 2,015
Contributions to retirement RIREFIFH 2R
benefit scheme 56 56
2,040 2,071

The number of the five highest paid individuals whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MENTFUTHREZRERSH AL
HEWT:

2021 2020
—E-—F —"E_TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 5 5

There was no arrangement under which any of the five
(2020: five) highest paid employees had waived or agreed

to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid employees as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office.

RAFE HERER(ZT_FF:
hB)REHEEEFEMALHER
RIBNEEMME T LM T B

RAFE  AEBEYERATIANESEKEK
= EE XN EAME - Az B E N
AREBHININARE BB 2 52E) > =X
TERBER(E -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 Bl E=ZF = —

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

E=H=F—HLFE

13. 1% -BERRHE

Leasehold Furniture, Motor Computer
improvements equipment vehicle equipment Total
HENXEE - BARRE RE EHRE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEL TER TET TEL
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NENA-A
Cost KA 4,261 76 1,094 106 5,537
Accumulated depreciation BitiIE (4,26) (60) (870) 69) (5,260)
Net carrying amount FREHE - 16 224 37 277
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z2-%%
=A=t—HLESE
Opening net carrying amount BUREFE - 16 224 37 277
Disposal (note i) & (et = = = - -
Depreciation e = ©) (124) (14) (144)
Closing net carrying amount BRGREFE - 10 100 23 133
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R=ZF-ZF=A=+-H
R-Z-ZFNA-H
Cost KA - 76 618 106 800
Accumulated depreciation ZitE - (66) (518) (83) (667)
Net carrying amount REFE - 10 100 23 133
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-Z--%
ZAZt-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount BUREFE - 10 100 23 133
Disposal (note ii) HE () - - (82) - (82)
Depreciation e - (6) (18) (14) (38)
Closing net carrying amount BARRETE - 4 - 9 13
At 31 March 2021 R=2--%=A=1-H
Cost AR - 76 - 106 182
Accumulated depreciation Z:HTE = 72 = 97) (169)
Net carrying amount REFE - 4 9 13
Note: B 5
(i) It represents disposals of leasehold improvements and motor (i) ,\?Eﬂj’%fﬁi\%%%ﬂ%gﬁiﬁ'ﬁ%Z%Tﬁi?
vehicles that have been fully depreciated before their disposals. The YERERTBRNHERND B @Z@ B i
cost and accumulated depreciation of the disposed fixed assets %XEQFZW$&§:#%% pily=1 Eﬁ%%
were approximately HK$4,261,000 and HK$4,261,000 for leasehold 24 E 494,261,000 7T N4,261 0 007 7T+ /%
improvements and HK$476,000 and HK$476,000 for the motor vehicle & #7476,0007% 7T }2476,0007% 7T °

respectively.

(ii) It represents disposals of motor vehicles which the cost and accumulated
depreciation were approximately HK$617,000 and HK$535,000
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. AR B AR 2 RE

Place of

incorporation/

Issues and
fully paid

Attributable equity

interests held by

Name operation share capital the Company Principal activities
£ BRI EELY BRTRARKRA FRRMEEERE  TEER
Direct Indirect
EE &
China Equity Assets Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding
PERELEEEERAT BR 187 RERK
Master Smooth Investment Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BRRERRBRAR BB 18T RERK
Eternal Fame Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
KABEEBRAT BE 10,000 7T RERK
Able Surplus Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BEREXBRAT BE 10,000 7T REER
Smart Access Capital Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$100 100% - Investment holding
Smart Access Capital Limited KBRS/ TA 100% 7T REER
Urban Thrive Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
Urban Thrive Limited KEBRHE/BA 50,000 7 REER
Moonglory International Properties Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
Moonglory International Properties Limited KEBRHE/BA 50,000 7 REZRR
Giant Treasure Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% - Dormant
Giant Treasure Global Limited KEBRHE/BA (E EEXHG
Ray Wealth Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
EFERAR BE 18T HEXH
Global Oasis Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Dormant
SEERERAT BB 18T EEXH
BERELH ORI BRAF (note) The Republic of China RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Dormant
("PRC")
EERARH ORI BRAR (Fz) hEARANE A #10,000,0007C EEXH
(r&l)
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. AHB AR ZRE (&)

96

Place of

incorporation/

Issues and
fully paid

Attributable equity

interests held by

Name operation share capital the Company Principal activities
£ SMAY EE Y BRTRARKRA FRRMEEERE  IEER

Direct Indirect

B &

China Zhongzi Zhiyuan Technology Co., Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
HEREBENMRERAT REERER/BE 50,000% 7T 100% - REER
China Tianzhi Market Management Co., Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
RERETSEEERERAA RRERER/BE 50,000% 7T 100% - REER
China Dingrun Supply Chain Co., Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
HESBHEEERAR REERES/BE 50,000% 7T 100% - REER
Beijing China Zhiyuan Technology Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Dormant
ERRABEMBEARAA BB 10087 - 100% EEXH
Dingrun Supply Chain (China) Co., Limited Hong Kong US$1 - 100%  Dormant
SEfEE (FE)FRAF BB B3 - 100% EEEH
Guangzhou Dingrun Supply Chain Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Dormant
BMPRERERERAR BE 10087 - 100% EEXHK
Note: M 3E -

The subsidiary is registered as a limited liability company under the law of PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z=F=—F=A=+—HILtFE

15. INTEREST IN THE ASSOCIATE 15. ABE AR 2R
2021 2020
=B —F T TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
Share of net assets of the associate DIEBE AR 2 BEFE - =

(@) Details of the Group's associate at 31 March 2021 are as () AEBEZEEARNNR_ZET_—F=H
follows: =t+t—BZFRAT:
Issued and  Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ registered held by Proportion of
Name of associate operation capital the Group voting power  Principal activity
B3l ERITRAR AEER
BENTER EENY AMER FEZEIL RRELH FEEHR
Bonicast Construction Material PRC Registered 49% 20%  Trading of construction
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (”Bom'cast”) RMB 10,000,000 (note) materials
SEEXREMK (LR)ERAR HE s 49% 0% EHESH
(les 1&¥J) AR #10,000,0007T ()
Note: B 5
(i) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Bonicast (i) AEBERANUSEEETEEATE

because it has the power to appoint one out of five directors of that

company under the articles of association of that company.

(i) The management reviewed the carrying amount of the associate by
considering the value-in-use based on discounted future cash flows
of the associate. The interest in the associate was fully impaired as

at 31 March 2020 as the associate is inactive over 3 years.

(ii)

7% J?l?%$‘§lﬁ@é7fﬁﬁfﬁi GIEEE:
ERMAZERARADZ —HNES-

EEEERENEZERAMNBERK
ReRnEBENERBEEENBERARZ
FEHE-ARBEARNTERKE=
F AMR=F=FFE=A=+—HR
BiE AR 2 R R BURE -
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e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —ZF - —F=A=+—HItFE

15. INTEREST IN THE ASSOCIATE (continued) 15. REF & AR 2z ()
(o) Summarised financial information in respect of Bonicast, b) T*EBEXEHE RN TEREZLHE
which is a material associate to the Group is set out BRI EHIN AT :
below:
2021 2020
—g-—£F —ZE-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
As at 31 March R=B=+-—H
Current assets mENEE - -
Non-current assets FEMENE E - -
Current liabilities mEAE (17) (17)
Net assets BEFE (17) (17)
Reconciliation to the Group's interest orl LTS AN
in the associate: SR
Proportion of the Group's ownership RNEE 2 HARELG 49% 49%
Carrying amount as at beginning of the year FYIREE S 5714
Share of result of the associate DIEEE N E 2 R - (5,357)
Impairment of interest in the associate REFE R A2 ERRE - (357)
Group's share of net assets of AEEEEBEARIEE
the assets of the associate 2 BEFE - -
Carrying amount of the associate B N RlRREE - -
Included in the above amounts are: GAULZEE:
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY S -
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade B EaE (TEE
and other payables) B I RNHIER

HoAth 5 30R) - >
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

15. REtE DRz s ()
AEEEIERLATNGHEEINE
ERBERINT  (8)

15. INTEREST IN THE ASSOCIATE (continued)
(b) Summarised financial information in respect of Bonicast, (b)
which is a material associate to the Group is set out

below: (continued)

2021 2020
—BE- - _ZT_FTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Year ended 31 March BE=A=+—HLEE
Revenue e = =
Loss from operation KEEE = (9,985)
Total comprehensive loss 2 HEEEEEE - (9,985)
Group's share of result of the associate REE D HHE R R ZEA - (5,357)
Group's share of total comprehensive income of A& EDHE & AR 22 H
the associate Uz 4R RE - (5,357)
Included in the above amounts are: FTAU 28
Depreciation and amortisation I8 K - -
Interest income FEWA - -
Income tax expense FS B < - =
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —ZF - —F=A=+—HItFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. BAFEFTAEHMZEHKWRERE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZHBEE
2021 2020
—B-—-F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT
Unlisted equity securities in PRC, at cost PEIFE EMIRAE S - IR 16,946 92,185
Fair value adjustment N EHAE (7,530) (83,592)
9,416 8,593
Particulars of investments in unlisted equity securities held by BB LR E'J FUNERBCAEEN =T
the Group as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 disclosed pursuant to T —FRIZTEF=A=+—H ﬁﬁ?—r#i
Chapter 21 of Listing Rules are as follows: TRAZHFREFBOT
Percentage
of effective
interest held Accumulated
Name of investee companies Place of incorporation at At cost fair value adjustment Carrying value
FEER
BYRENAER AL ER L 4 2 BEAAL BEA SHATERE REE

/32021 31/3/2021 /3200 31/3/2021 313200 31/3/2021 31/3/2020
“E--F  ZBZ-§ -%-%F CZBZ-§ C-T-%F CZB--§ C-I-%%
ZA=+-B ZA=t-B ZA=t-8 ZAZ+-B ZAZt+-B ZAZt-B ZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn Thn Tin THn ThR Thx

Tianjin Bao Xin Ying Precious Metals PRC 12.00% 6,590 6590 (2,460) (2,694) 4130 3,8%
Management Limited (“Bao Xin") (note (iv)
iﬁﬁééﬁ i“(‘ﬁ‘ﬁi ik
1) (HsEe)
GuangZhou Da Jian Company Management PRC 11.59% 9,800 9,800 (4,514) (5,222) 5,286 4578

Consultation Limited ( E/MNER L FEREH
BRAF) ("Da Jian") (note (v)

BMERMEERAAERAR ([E8]) ik
(M)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. BAFEFTAEHMZHKWRERE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued) ZHBEE (&)
Percentage
of effective
interest held Accumulated
Name of investee companies Place of incorporation at At cost fair value adjustment Carrying value
FrEER
BRREDTER AL BREADL BRK i ATESRE REE

31732021 31/3/2021 31/3/200  31/3/2021 3132000 31/3/2021 31/3/2020

“F--f  ZBc--§  CZZC-TF ZBC-f TR ZB--f  C3°%F
=A=t-A =B=t-H =A=t+-A =BA=t+-B =A=t-B =B=t-RA ZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

TEn TAT TEn T ThR AL

China Petroleum Bio-Energy Company Limited Hong Kong - - 24,400 - (24,400 - -
("Bio-Energy") (note (vi)

ERREMRRERAR ([EMRR]) &b

(M)

Yenbo Gain Limited (“Yenbo Gain") (note (vil)) BvI - - 13,092 - (13,092 - -

RERBBRAR (TREM]) (Mekui)) ABEREE

Perfect Worth Investment Limited BVI = - 18,303 - (18,184) = 119
("Perfect Worth") (note (viii)

Perfect Worth Investment Limited ERAERES

([Perfect Worth | ) (B E(vii))

Golden Resources Asia Limited BVI = - 10,000 - (10,000) - S
("Golden Resources”) (note (iii)
Golden Resources Asia Limited EBARES

([Golden Resources | ) (Fit3E(ii))

Huge Leader Investment Development Limited BVI 100% 556 10,000 (556) (10,000) - -
("Huge Leader") note (ii)
Huge Leader Investment Development Limited AEERES
([Huge Leader |) (Bif&E(i)

16,946 92,185 (7,530) (83,592) 9,416 8,593
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year

ended 31 March 2021 HE—ZE-—F=A=+—RHIEE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Note:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The investment in Da Jian is measured at fair value and classified as Level
3 fair value measurement. The fair values is determined by reference to
the valuation carried out by an external independent valuer by using
Guideline Publicly Traded Company method with reference to similar
listed companies and adjusted to reflect the specific circumstance of the

investments. The significant unobservable inputs are as follows:

Da Jian is valued by a price-to-book ratio multiple of comparable listed

companies. A discount was applied to reflect the lack of marketability of

16. BAFEFAEEMb2EHWHEE
ZHBEE (&
P &L

() MERZBRETDAATFEFE LHHER3
BRTFEFE - RTFENESEINEBILME
EEVEA LT ARESDAEL 2 BEEE
ZEEDZR2ZRU LT AR R RRZE
BREZBEEMRNMETAE - EXTAIER
BABBOT

ERRAIELR ET AR ZMREREHET
HE ERRBRZFTIFELHRERZTHR

the unlisted investments. B 1% i hn DA BR 3R -
Da Jian
ERg
Lack of marketability discount rate Rz %M BN ALIR X 25%

If the lack of marketability discount rate was 5% higher/lower while all
other variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the investments
in Da Jian would decrease/increase by approximately HK$88,000 (2020:
HK$76,000).

The investment in Bao Xin is measured at fair value and classified as Level
3 fair value measurement. The fair values of Bao Xin is determined by
reference to the valuation carried out by an external independent valuer

by using Asset Base Approach.

If the net book values of Bao Xin was 5% higher/lower while all other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the investments in
Bao Xin would increase/decrease by approximately HK$207,000 (2020:
HK$195,000).

The investment in Golden Resources and Huge Leader is measured at fair
value and classified as Level 3 fair value measurement. Since the directors
of the Company lost contact with the management of Golen Resources
and Huge Leader and the directors of the Company was unable to
obtain any financial information of Golden Resources and Huge Leader
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the directors of
the Company measured the fair value of the Group's interests in Golden
Resources and Huge Leader by Adjusted Net Assets Method based on
the latest available financial information of Huge Leader which was the
net asset values as at 31 March 2019, and adjusted for the factors they
considered that might affect their fair values including the indirectly held
operating subsidiaries was no longer held by the subsidiaries of Golden
Resources and Huge Leader as at 31 March 2020.
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(i) REBEEZREUQFEFE THERMN
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£ 195,000/ 7T ) °
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Note: (continued)

(iv)

On 24 June 2020 and 26 June 2020, the Company entered into two sale
and purchase agreements with an independent third party by which
the Group agreed to sell, and the buyer agreed to buy the 14% equity
interest in Golden Resources and 17% equity interests in Huge Leader
for a consideration of HK$816,000 and HK$762,000 in cash respectively
and the disposal was completed on 25 June 2020 and on 27 June
2020 respectively. After reviewing the latest financial information of the
investment, the management decided to dispose of the investments in
order to improve financial performance of the Company. A change in
fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI amounting to HK$816,000 and
HK$762,000 were recognised in the other comprehensive income for
disposal of Golden Resources and Huge Leader respectively. A cumulative
loss of approximately HK$9,184,000 and HK$8,683,000 were transferred
from revaluation reserve to accumulated losses upon the disposal of

Golden Resources and Huge Leader respectively.

For the Group's remaining investment in the 1% equity interests in Huge
Leader as at 31 March 2021, the directors of the Company have also
taken into account of the consideration for the disposal of the 17% equity

interests in Huge Leader as mentioned below.

Bao Xin is a PRC established company and principally engaged in the
trading of precious metals and gold products and investment advisory in
Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group's interest of Bao Xin is held through a nominated shareholder.
The Company understands that there would be regulatory obstacles for
the registration of transfer of equity interests of Bao Xin under the name
of the Group directly. As such, the relevant arrangements in holding the

12% equity interest in Bao Xin were made.

The Company has obtained PRC legal opinion to confirm the validity and
effectiveness of such arrangement. As stated in the PRC legal opinion,
there are contractual and legal obligations binding on the nominated
shareholder and such arrangements are valid and effective under the
relevant PRC laws. In addition, the Company has obtained confirmations
from Bao Xin and the nominated shareholder to confirm its beneficial
interests in Bao Xin. Confirmation has been obtained from all the
registered shareholders of Bao Xin to confirm the shareholding of the

Group in Bao Xin.

The aforesaid arrangement has been in operation for years and the
nominated shareholder(s) have complied with the relevant contractual
and legal obligations and are the major shareholder of Bao Xin. As such,
the Company considers that the associated risks that the nominated
shareholder would be in breach of such arrangement would be relatively
low. Having considered the time and costs to obtain the relevant
approvals for the Group to become direct registered shareholder of Bao
Xin and the associated risks of not being direct registered shareholder
of Bao Xin, the Company considers that the relevant arrangements are

appropriate under the current circumstances.

16. HAF{EET AL

HttzmW s EE

ZHBEE (&
Fifsk : ()

RZEZEFANATHEBR_ZT=_ZFF
NAZTAB ARRE-—FBIE=FE]
VYMHEERE Bt ASEREHEM
B 75 [/ Z & B Golden ResourcesH)14%% 1
K Huge Leader)17%%# - 3 & (X B 5 5l
%816,000/% 7T [ 762,000 70 - B B H & 5
AR _TFAAA=+HBARZ=ZZ=F
FRNAZTELtHEXN - REHEBAKEDN
NP EERE EEEATLEEBEE
B UNEARRAIMEIBERIR - RAFEER
AEHMWEEAREREEZHBEEENRF
18 % $816,0007% 7T %.762,0007% 7T 7 5l Bt
& Golden ResourcesX&Huge Leaderi® H
2 E Yz TR o R 5T ET18 499,184,000/ 7T K&
8,683,000/ 7T % BIF & Golden Resources
KHuge Leaderff BB EEHERE RatE

Be

RAEER-_Z_—F=A=+—HBH#H
Huge Leader 1%BRERFILZEMS AR
RIEEEE K Nt EHuge Leader 17%
IRAEERAE -

EER HRFBERIZAR EZRTF
RENRFECENESHREERRERS
PR A5

AEEREE A VEB  REREKRR
FE-ARBTRIAAEELZEZERET
ERCBRRBRERBFAERERR B K
NAVERI A EE12%RE Z B @LHE-

ARRERBHEERERIAEZREELH
ZEHMEREN - BEHBERBRAM R
BARETEDER BREBRRZAORER
%ﬁ“%@ﬁﬁ BEEHRHEERAHN- ﬁt?\\'$

75%%%&%%%&%3& HRE D
HRARAAREE 2 ERmfEsm AR T)‘Hﬁé
BE/MESCBRRNGHERE AR

SEREE k-

Pz BEEEZE ARRELARREEST
BEEHRERERY YABEZEERR-

Bt ARNBRR BRERRERFER
HFZ@E%}—W HEBE - EZERAEEK
REEERSCBCRBUSHERL A Z FE R

PN ERD FEE B R B AR ROR 2 MH B AL e
ARARA REKBILT HEZHEEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Note: (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Da Jian is a PRC established company and principally engaged in

providing enterprise management and consulting service in the PRC.

On 29 September 2020, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party by which the Group agreed
to sell, and the buyer agreed to buy the 5.69% equity interest in Bio-
Energy for a combined consideration of HK$200,000 in cash and the
disposal was completed on 30 September 2020. After reviewing the latest
financial information of the investment, the management decided to
dispose the investment in order to improve financial performance of the
Company. A change in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI amounting
to HK$200,000 was recognised in the other comprehensive income at
date of derecgonition. A cumulative loss of approximately HK$24,200,000
was transferred from revaluation reserve to accumulated losses upon the

disposal.

On 25 September 2020, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party by which the Group agreed
to sell, and the buyer agreed to buy the 18.18% equity interest in Yenbo
Gain for a combined consideration of HK$200,000 in cash and the
disposal was completed on 26 September 2021. After reviewing the latest
financial information of the investment, the management decided to
dispose the investment in order to improve financial performance of the
Company. A change in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI amounting
to HK$200,000 was recognised in the other comprehensive income at
date of derecgonition. A cumulative loss of approximately HK$12,892,000
was transferred from revaluation reserve to accumulated losses upon the

disposal.

On 23 April 2020, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party by which the Group agreed
to sell, and the buyer agreed to buy the 5% equity interest in Perfect
Worth for a combined consideration of HK$500,000 in cash and the
disposal was completed on 24 April 2020. After reviewing the latest
financial information of the investment, the management decided to
dispose the investment in order to improve financial performance of the
Company. A change in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI amounting
to HK$381,000 was recognised in the other comprehensive income at
date of derecgonition. A cumulative loss of approximately HK$17,803,000
was transferred from revaluation reserve to accumulated losses upon the

disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. BAFEFTAEHMZHKWRERE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)) ZHBEE (&)
The following is the analysis of fair value change of financial ATRBEAFESAEEMEEBESEEZ
assets at FVTOCI for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020: VB EERBE_T_—FR-_T_FTF=

A=+—ALFEZATFEEBHH

Change in fair value during
the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1T-HLFEZ

AR EEE
2021 2020
—B-_—-F —ET_FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Unlisted equity securities issued by: HIATREIETZIELETRAZS

— Bao Xin &5 234 (309)
- Da Jian —EB 708 (1,315)
— Bio-Energy —HE MR 200 (2,516)
- Yenbo Gain —RBEF 200 (2,470)
— Perfect Worth —Perfect Worth 381 (359)
— Golden Resources —Golden Resources 816 (8,160)
— Huge Leader —Huge Leader 762 (8,065)
3,301 (23,194)

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17. RAFEFAERZREEZMEE

PROFIT OR LOSS E

2021 2020
B —F —E_FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Hong Kong listed equity securities, BB LETRAES
at market value (note a) EmE (KiEa) 18,715 7,290

Investments in convertible bonds, KERABRKRES
at fair value (note b) BRAFE (HiEb) 9,749 15,872
Financial guarantee (note ¢) P REVER (Bi5Ec) 253 10,934
28,717 34,096
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17. BAFEF A CEREEZ2HKE

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) E(E
(a) Particulars of the Group's major investments of listed (@) BELTMRAUENEFREFEAEERZ
equity securities held by the Group as at 31 March 2021 T —GFR-ZZTZEF=A=+—H
and 2020 disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing RECEEZLMRABHEREF BN
Rules are as follows: 5
2021 2%
Accumulated
unrealised
Percentage gain/(loss)
Number of  of interest Market arising on Change in
Name of investee companies Note shares held held Cost value  revaluation fair value
EffEER
RitRER
fisER g/ NVE
BIRENDER Wizt FsRO#E B RA HE (B#) 25
2021 2021
—E--F —E--F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAT TR

Golden Ponder Holdings Limited (“Golden Ponder”) (i) 37,560,000 ordinary share 4.6950% 4,883 9766 4883 4,883
emERERAR ([eRER]) f) 37,560,000 & B %
Asia Television Holdings Limited (“Asia Television”) (ii) 235,510,000 ordinary share 2.3727% 10,355 8,949 (1,406) (1,406)
SHERERERAR ([ZHER]) (i 235,510,0008% & @i
2020 —_ZT-F
Accumulated
unrealised
Percentage gain/(loss)
Number of ~ of interest Market arisingon  Change in
Name of investee companies Note shares held held Cost value  revaluation fair value
BREE
FESES |
s BlE/
BRXRENTER i3 FERAEA Bl A& mE (F#8) ALTESD
2020 2020
b i 22 b o 33

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL

Golden Ponder Holdings Limited (" Golden Ponder") (i) 37,560,000 ordinary share 4.6950% 10,518 4,884 (5,634) (5,634)
eRERERAE ([RER]) (i) 37,560,008 & i fix
Asia Television Holdings Limited (“Asia Television”) (ii) 63,320,000 ordinary share 0.8527% 15,450 2406 (13,044) (13,044)
SHEREREBRAR ([ZHER]) (i) 63,320,000 L3R
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  17. RAFEFACEBEREZMBEE
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) E(E)
(@)  (continued) @ (#&)
Notes: B o -
(i) Golden Ponder was incorporated in Cayman Island and its shares (i) R HAERESTEMAY ERH
are listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock REBBIFER M (BRHRR:
code: 1783). Golden Ponder is an investment holdings company 1783) com A —MIREER QA E
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are provision of ME AR M E BB R A BARGER &
superstructure building and repair, maintenance, alteration and DIRE TEEBEEREE #E N
addition works as a main contractor. For the financial year ended BERMNEIR - BEZE-_T=_—F=H8
31 March 2021, the audited consolidated loss attributable to equity =ST—HUEVBEE emIEREE
holders of Golden Ponder was approximately HK$12,314,000 with A& E Iz B HE47512,314,000
basic and diluted loss per share of HK$1.54. As at 31 March 2021, its B BRERREEEE /1.548
audited consolidated net assets attributable to the Company was T RZE-Z—F=RA=+—H'&
approximately HK$7,885,000. No dividend was received during the RAEHEEEZRGEEEERENOR
year ended 31 March 2021. 7,885,000 L BHE T - —F=A8
=+ HIEFERERRERBRE -
(i) Asia Television was incorporated in Cayman lIsland and its shares (if) TEMERRFESES MK E
are listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange DRBE AR ER LT (BRGHR5E :
(stock code: 707). Asia Television acts as an investment holding 707) e SN ER A —EREZER A A -
company. For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the BE_T-_TF+-_A=+—HB1tH
audited consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of Asia HEE  BMNER 2 ERmREE ABEL
Television was approximately RMB173,121,000 with basic and BEZEABEN R AR173,121,000
diluted loss per share of RMB0.0205. As at 31 December 2020, its T BREARAREEEFEEAARE
audited consolidated net assets attributable to the Company was 00205t  R=ZZE=_TF+_A=+—
approximately RMB518,000. No dividend was received during the H ARAEEERERGEEEFE
year ended 31 December 2020. DB ANRES1800TL - BHE-_ZE_F
F+_A=+—HILFEHEKRE
(OF:¢s)
The fair values of the Group's investments in listed REBREMRABHERE A FE
equity securities are based on quoted market price. The A mERKE HER T —
proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value FR-IZFZEFZA=T—BERAT
through profit or loss as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are Bt A AEERERE U BEENEF
HK$22,467,000 and HK$15,115,000 respectively. I8 5 Bl /522,467,0005% 7T 15,115,000
AT e
(o) Particulars of investments in convertible bonds held b) RELEMRAUENERE 2 AEERZ
by the Group as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 disclosed TR E_FEF=FA=1+—H
pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing Rules are as follows: IR ER AT RESFFIBNT
Unlisted debt
Name of investee companies Place of incorporation securities, at cost Fair value adjustment Carrying value
BERRENAER TR AR L 4 5 FLnERRS RAK NTESR REE
31/3/2021 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2020
~¥--f CFC%F -g--f “BORE L Cgs-f CRCRF
=B=t-B =A=+-B =ZA=t-B =A=+-H Z=A=t-B Z=A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TAL TR FEL
Guanwan Investments Limited (note(i)) BVI 20,000 20,000 (10,251) (@.128) 9,749 15,872

BERAARAR (W) AEERES
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e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) (continued)

0]

On 22 December 2014, the Company invested in the 3% unsecured
convertible bonds issued by Guanwan Investments Limited
("Guanwan”) at a face value of HK$20,000,000, bearing coupon
interest rate of 3% per annum. Guanwan is an investment holding
company which indirectly hold 100% shares of its subsidiary, &Il
SRIEREERARF ("&FFE"). ©554E is principally engaging in
designing, manufacturing and retail of women's dress in PRC. Each
convertible bond due on 22 December 2017 are convertible into 24
fully paid ordinary shares of Guanwan with a par value of USD1.00
each at a conversion price of HK$833,333 per conversion share. The
Company can exercise the conversion at any time until the maturity
date.

On 23 December 2017, the due date of convertible bonds were
renewed to 22 December 2020. On 23 December 2020, the due
date of convertible bonds were further renewed to 22 December
2023. All of the other terms remain unchanged for the above

renewal.

Investments in convertible bonds represent investments in
convertible bonds issued by Guanwan. The investments in the
convertible bonds have debt components and embedded
derivatives components. The directors of the Company designated
the combined contracts as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and recognised at fair value. The fair value of the
combined contracts as at 31 March 2021 is determined by reference
to the valuation carried out by an external independent valuer by
using Discounted Cash Flow Method and Binominal Option Pricing
Model. The inputs are as follows:

Guanwan
Underlying share price HK$372,939
Number of share outstanding 24
Conversion price per share HK$833,333
Time to maturity 2.7 years
Interest rate per annum 3%
Discount rate 38.55%
Risk free rate 0.29%
Volatility 52.63%

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement are the underlying share price and expected
volatility. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the

underlying share price and expected volatility.
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KRERNBEREFRAR([EE]) %
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T {8 /20,000,000 7T * I B Z R K &
FIEFHE -EBEAKREERARF M
EREEEWNBARFYSEBRES
RAR ([£555B]) 2100%0% 15 ° & 5
BEEBEPERELELT EERT
E- BN _TE—+F+=-A=+=H
BIH iz AT ES IR R R E SRR
B P%17833,333 i M AR B &Kk E
B1.003E 7T 2 R A% 51 3% 38 AR24R% - X
AR AR EIER B ATRE R 7T MR A

R-E—+FE+_A-+=H Ak
BEAIAREEE T _EFE+_- A
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s A EMEREERTE -
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SAAEBRRBREZMBEE WRAF
BERER - GHANNR_ZE_—F=H
=T —BZATFEDBR2EZINEBL
HEMEARRREREEZR AN
g EBEEAMELEMNEE - FHE%
ABEMT

T8
AR (E 372,939 7T
BATHEINRIDER B 24
BR®RKRE 833,333 7T
T HARE RS 274
FHE 3%
A 3R = 38.55%
2 3, B ) 2 0.29%
L] 52.63%
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China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

In addition, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in the underlying
share prices by 5% would have increased/decreased the
carrying amount of the investment by approximately
HK$487,000/HK$487,000 (2020: HK$794,000/HK$794,000).

On 2 December 2019, the Board of Directors made
an announcement to inform the shareholders that
the Company was unable to publish the 2019 Interim
Results by 30 November 2019 as the Company had not
been able to collect the information on some investee
companies, namely Golden Resources and Huge Leader,
for compiling the 2019 Interim Results.

On 20 January 2020, Ms. Yang Xiaogiu (“Ms. Yang”), the
Chairman of the Group, executed the Deed of Indemnity
in favour of the Company to guarantee that the value
of the Company's respective investments in Golden
Resources and Huge Leader will not fall below 70% of the
fair value of such investments as reflected in the audited
financial statements of the Company as at 31 March
2019. 70% of the fair value of such investments as at
31 March 2019 amounted to HK$11,358,000. The Deed of
Indemnity was recognised as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and recognised at fair value and the
amount of HK$10,934,000 is the fair value of the Deed
of Indemnity as at 31 March 2020 based on the valuation
report of an independent valuer.

On 24 June 2020 and 26 June 2020, the Company
disposed all equity interests in Golden Resources
and 17% equity interests in Huge Leader with a total
considerations of HK$1,578,000. The former Chairman of
the Group is required to pay a total amount of shortfall
of HK$9,466,000 to the Company and guarantees that
the value of the Company’s investment in remaining
1% equity interest in Huge Leader will not fall below
70% of the fair value of such investment as reflected in
the audited financial statements of the Company as at
31 March 2019 under the terms of the Deed of Indemnity.
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the former
Chairman repaid HK$1,200,000 to the Company.

17. BAFEF A EESEE 2 KE
E(E)

(b)

(%)

BE AN - {8 5T 1 BT A EL 4 TE A 45 T
BN - HBRERE EFt T k5% &
BUi% & AR B 3% 0,8 4> 49487,0007%
7T,/487,0007% 7T ( =& = Z £ : 794,000
T, 794,000/ 7T ) °

R-_ZE—NFE+-_A-_H =<3
REDNMERE ARG EEE-ZF
—NF+—BA=+HZAEM_=—A"
FHEES  AAARQAE LGS
& A7l (BlGolden Resources&
Huge Leader) IERIABRE —T — N,
R ERELS

BUMERBN T NF=ZRA="+—
AZRECHBHRRARR - R _F
—EF-AZ+R XEEFEGE
ML ([BREDUERRARIZEA
2 8 R AR A 2 AR Golden
Resources M Huge Leaderf) & BIZ & B
EFTSERERERE A TFERNTO%
ZERENR-_TE-NF=HA=+—H
#70% 2 F {8 #11,358,000% 7T o 7 18
RERERRAREATFESALEERE
B WK EEY RN FEER RMRIE
BUMEMEERS BERZER
ZEZTF=A=+—RZATFEAR
10,934,000/ T °

RZEZTEFANAZ+EBRZ=ZZZ
ZENAZ+HRH  ARFHEGolden
Resourcesf) 2 &% 4% f2 Huge Leaderf]
17%% ¥ - #8118 /31,578,000 7T - 1R
BREZENGER AEEREEAR
2N B 52 AT 48 Z= §89,466,00078 7T I AR 75
KR AFRHuge LeaderF|#h1%A% 7 A%
EEERTEERARRAR_Z—A
FZA=Z+—BZREXVBREM
REKBRAEEQNFERIOR HEZ
T_—F=A=1+—HIEFE AEE
AR A A8 1,200,000/ 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

@]

(continued)

On 11 March 2021, Ms. Yang resigned as Board Chairman
and transferred all the remaining liability under the
Deed of Indemnity to the new Board Chairman, Mr. Han
Zhenghai (“Mr. Han"”) on 15 March 2021. Mr. Han
executed a new Deed of Indemnity under which he
promises to pay the remaining liability to the Company,
which is HK$8,266,000, and guarantees that the value
of the Company's investment in 1% equity interest in
Huge Leader will not fall below 70% of the fair value
of such investment as reflected in the audited financial
statements of the Company as at 31 March 2019. Upon
the change of the Chairman, the financial guarantee
provided by Ms. Yang has been derecognised. The
fair value of the financial guarantee was approximately
HK$7,713,000 at the date of derecognition. The liability of
Mr. Han amounting to HK$7,713,000 has been recognised
as amount due from the shareholder. The balance of
HK$253,000 represents the fair value of the financial
guarantee on the Company’s investment in 1% equity
interest in Huge Leader as at 31 March 2021 based on the
valuation report of an independent valuer.

The fair value of the guarantee as at 31 March 2021 and
2020 are determined by reference to the valuation carried
out by an external independent valuer. The valuation
approach used by the valuer are Discounted Cash Flow
Method (also known as Credit Default Swap Pricing
Model). The inputs are as follows:

17. BAFEF A EESEE 2O BEE
E(E)

(0

(%)

RZEZ—F=A+—H HBXxT#E
TEEEFRE YR_FT-_—F=A
THAKBERBETMARGBRAR
ETHMTEEEFFRIEELESE ([
FHE]) BEERE-—HIRERNE
AR 2N A B 32 8RB (58,266,00078
T WARFE AN A Bl Huge Leader 1%0%
BOREBEKTEERARTNZ
E-NF=ZRA=1T—RAZKEEZNH
B&RRME AR E R T ENT0% -
TRERER R BRIREHENMBERE
RARERR - NBUBHERR B B 5 2R 10
NFERBKT,713,0008 T - BAEENE
f&7,713,00078 JT 4% #E 38 7 JRE U AR 3R 3K
T8 o 45 8R253,0008 LA =T = —F = A
=T HAREBVHEMNGERS
AR B Huge Leader 1%h% #E HY 1%
BEHHMBER A TFE.

R —ER T -_TE=-F=+—
BRERZAFEDNELREIIEBE T
HEMATEBEmETE - B EMATAR
BEFERMBEReREL(NBAEER
ENEBAEEER) -BHEE AZSEN
T

Huge Leader

HK$
ATT

Fair value of 1% interest as at 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=A
=t—H1%Ezm A FE 448,000
Maximum guarantee @70% = ER7I0% 314,000
Probability of default BROB= 37%
Discount rate BhIR = 0.06%

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is the probability of default. The fair value
measurement is negatively correlated to the probability
of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

@]

(continued)

As at 31 March 2021, it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, an increase/decrease
in the probability of default by 5% would have
increased/decreased the carrying amount of the
investment by approximately HK$1,000/HK$1,000 (2020:
HK$14,000/HK$17,000).

18. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

17. BAFEF A EESEE 2 EE

(%)
© (&)
NR-ZBE-_—F=A=+—8 HstEREaE
ftb S IE MR EIE N T » & LR 5

5% B B A BR T E 4 Hn, R 4 491,000
Y IC,71,0008 70 (=& = £ : 14,0005
7T,/ 17,0005 7T) °

18. HihERRIE - e R ANRIE

PREPAYMENTS
2021 2020
—E——F B FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Interest receivable JE U FI B 2,563 2,563
Prepayments TE T RRIE 144 107
Other receivables and deposits paid (note a) H A e R IA K
2fiEE (Miza) 59,006 59,703
61,713 62,373
Less: Provision for impairment loss (note a) B OREEEEE (HFa) (59,004) (59,016)
ECL allowance (note b) JEE =z E R EEE
(FizEb) (2,563) (2,563)
(61,567) (61,579)
146 794
Notes: It -

(@)

The Group's other receivables and deposits paid were mainly refundable
deposits paid for potential investments in amount of HK$59,000,000 as at
31 March 2021 (2020: HK$59,000,000) and the refundable deposits paid
was fully impaired as at 31 March 2020 due to uncertain recoverability of

the refundable deposits paid.

The directors of the Company estimate the loss allowance on the interest
receivables at the end of the reporting period on an individual basis, at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL taking into account the expected collection
period as these receivables are categorised as doubtful under the Group's
credit risk grading framework. Under HKFRS 9's general approach for the
ECL model, the valuer has assessed and determined that the credit risk of
the interest receivables has increased significantly to the Stage 3 risk level.
The directors of the Company thus considered that impairment on interest
receivables with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$2,563,000
(2020: 2,563,000) was made due to significant delay in repayments.

@ R-ZE-—F=A=+—H K&EBZHM
ERABEMEMNZEETEARBEREZE
AR B 32 459,000,000 7T (Z B - F4 -
59,000,000/ 7T ) K AT HEE B4 Al iR B 1%
A E MEMARERESER=_Z=-%
F=ZA=+—BERERE-

b) HEHRFAHULDH KRAREEREHEE
RSN 2 MBEREEEERNSRMETNR
SHRHEENSEREEE RESREAR
SENEERRFRER  ZEREFIAR
DERRE-REBEF BB RELRIFSE
ZERBEEBEERX 2 —RIE HEME
& fih I 28 E FE WA B2 (5 B L B B A
EEIERARRR - ALt ARREERS
FT 12 FE WO 2R (B 42 §E 492,563,000 7T ( —
T T :2,563,0008 ) THARERER
TSR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

18. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 18.

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The movements in allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

Hit BB E  ZERANRE
(%)
Lt SRR R (B B B AT ¢

2021 2020

=B _—T_TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At the beginning of year REA] 61,579 60,261
Impairment losses recognised EHRREEE 491 1,318

At the end of year RER 62,070 61,579

19. AMOUNT DUE FROM THE SHAREHOLDER 19. B R RFKIE

On 15 March 2021, due to the Change of the chairman, R-ZEBE-_—F=A+FHR BN ETEEE

Mr. Han, who is also a shareholder of the Company, promised
to pay the remaining liability to the Company under the Deed
of Indemnity executed by Ms. Yang. For details, please refer to

BELENMBARBRR  AEARNR AN
HEXERITNBEZBR TORGRAE-
HIEH2HME17() °

note 17(c).
20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BeREEZEEY
2021 2020
—E-—f ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank balances RITETF 8,504 2,303

The effective interest rate of the deposits in 2021 range from
0.001% to 0.45% (2020: 0.001% to 0.45%) per annum and
all of them have a maturity within three months from initial

inception.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z=F=—F=A=+—HILtFE

21. SHARE CAPITAL

21. BA&

Number of
ordinary shares

at HK$0.01
each
‘000 HK$'000
ZERHAE
BREE
0.01& T
TR FHT
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 RZZE-NFMA—B-
and 31 March 2021 —E_EBEF=HA=w5H>
—E_FEFWNA-BK
kS ——:2 = 5| = - — (8 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-ZZE_ZTF=A=+—H
rZZT-_ZTFPIPAH—H 1,058,185,729 10,582
Placement of new shares (note) B & # R (FTsE) 211,600,000 2,116
At 31 March 2021 R-ZB-—F=A=+—H 1,269,785,729 12,698
All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then RERNBBITHMBERONE T EHEER 2

existing shares in all respects.

Note:

On 23 December 2020, an aggregate number of 211,600,000 new ordinary shares

BARGZERSER-

fiE :

R-FB_FEF+_HA=_F=H-4R TE’]ﬁj

of par value of HK$0.001 each were issued at subscription price of HK$0.101 E=HEFR0.1017E T H R Z%?éﬂ' & H
each to the independent third parties of the Company at gross proceeds of 211 600,000HQHQE1§0.001/%TEE)]%E BAR - P
approximately HK$21,372,000, and related directly attributable expenses of SRIBAEEE X A21,372,000/ 7T MR B = B

approximately HK$962,000.

7 49 5962,00078 7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

22. RESERVES 22. it
COMPANY b /N
Investment
Share  Shareholder's revaluation ~ Share option  Accumulated
premium  contribution reserve reserves losses Total
BB EE BRRIE REEMRE  BRERE ZHER @t
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER TR TER TR TR
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZ-NE=A=t-H
R=Z-hEmA—-H 372,760 - (54,106) 65,781 (285,276) 99,159
Loss for the year TEEER = = = = (58,272) (58,272)
Other comprehensive income HthzmEkm
Change in fair value of financial assets ~ ZATEFAEEMZE
at FVTOCl KRB HEEL
ATEZE) = - (21,570) - - (21,570)
Share options lapsed BRAERE > - - (65,781) 65,781 -
Total comprehensive income for the year AN E 2 Az 185 = = (21,570) (65,781) 7,509 (79,842)
Shareholder's contribution RETE = 10,934 = = = 10,934
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-TE=f=1+-H 372,760 10934 (75,676) - (277,767) 30,251
Loss for the year REERE S = = - (15,628) (15,628)
Other comprehensive income HthzEhE
Change in fair value of financial assets ~ RAFEGTATEMZE
at FVTOCI WEREZHBEEL
NTEES - - 2,359 - - 2,359
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE AN HLE - - 2,359 = (15,628) (13,269)
Transfer of loss on disposal of BRATEHALMRE
financial asset at fair value through KazhESREEL
other comprehensive income to BRESZRERS
retained eamings - - 72,761 - (72,761) -
Placing of new shares REFRH 18,294 = = = = 18,294
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-5=A=1-H 391,054 10,934 (556) - (366,156) 35276
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

22. RESERVES (continued)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each

reserve within owners’ equity:

Reserve

R

22. (&)
DT AUEE ARSAEREZ EEREN
24 :

Description and purpose

Bk B W

Share premium
AR 19 % B

Investment revaluation reserve

RESMERHE

Exchange reserve

I (1

Share option reserve

BRERE

Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

ABRASHEBELEE

Gains/losses arising on recognising financial assets classified as financial
assets at FVTOCI at fair value.
RERAFESHEEERIBDBARATFES AEEM2HKEREZ
BB EmMEE 2 Was B8 -

Gains/losses arising on retranslating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

HENERENREBIEBEEFENEEZ RS BE-

Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share options to the
employees over the vesting period.

shiREHE MR B R LB EER R

23.

24.

Accumulated losses

RETER
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 April 2009 for
the primary purpose of providing incentive to directors and
eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares of the Company. Consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable by each grantee upon acceptance of an
option. As at the date of grant, the exercise prices of the share
options were HK$1.824 and HK$1.56. As a result of the share
subdivision effected on 2 January 2015, the exercise prices
were adjusted to HK$0.1824 and HK$0.1560.

On 28 December 2018, a new share option scheme replaced
the previous Scheme. Except that no further Share Options
may be granted under the Scheme consequent upon its
termination, all other provisions of the Scheme remain in force.
The exercise prices were adjusted to HK$1.824 and HK$1.56
following the share consolidation on 21 March 2019.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Net asset value per share is calculated by dividing the net
assets included in the consolidated statement of financial
position of approximately HK$49,331,000 (2020: net assets of
HK$41,070,000) and the number of ordinary shares in issue as
at 31 March 2021, being 1,269,785,729 (2020: 1,058,185,729).

24.

Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

RiBz R 2 Ratla MBEFHE
23.

B RS &
ARAFIRERER S ([ZETEl)) TR IBER
—ETAFNANBBRBARERMEN
FEEEMEERGEREEBREER R
BaZitE ARREZERAEGERES (2
BARARREWNBARTNES)E TERE
UREARRGIRG - BUARAEESER
R AT M.00BTHRE - RETFAE B
RS HE B 1T (B 51,8247 7T 21,5678 7T » A7
—E-RAF-A_HETHRGIFAE 17
B A% 50.18247 7T 120.156078 7T °

RZZE—-NF+ZA=Z+N\B —EHHIMHE
Bt st 8BV ST BT MY aX AT &l ° BR X A& AT 8l &
BT BE - PREZTEE TRRESN
At AR MIRXXDER - R =F— A,
FZRA-t+—BNRNHEHE TEEKSH
B B1.8248 T R1.56/8TT °

BEREEFE
BREEFERFAGEVUBRARCEE
TF{E 449,331,000 BT (ZE-_2F & E
JF{E41,070,0008 ) B AR=ZE=—F =1
—t+—BZBEETERERKEE1,269,785729
B% (== —Z 4 :1,058,185,7290% ) st & »
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

25. BEALRS

Compensation of key management personnel, including @ FR2ERAB(BREZENEMIEE
the directors and other members of key management, BAB)FAMEMT:
during the year is as follows:
2021 2020
—R_—F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
Salaries, allowances and e R R
benefits in kind EYH &= 952 1,607
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in FHEEHe 2 E—FTHBHARES

note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Group entered into the following

B MR MEE12
b) FR AEEZEEBBEALITINATR

transactions with related parties: 2
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF

Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000

AEALTERE REME FHET FHT

China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited Investment manager fee - 550

(“China Everbright”) (Note i)
FENXKES (BB)BRAA WEKIEER
(THREIER]) (B

Yang Xiaoqiu (Note ii) Shareholder’s contribution 1,200 10,934

e Rk (B 5Ei) REEE

Han Zhenghai (Note iii) Shareholder’s contribution 7,966 =

#RIEE (P =Eiii) RETE

Notes: MIeE -

(i) The annual investment manager’s fee payable to China Everbright (i) GFERMNPBEAARZKELKEERA
is HK$Nil (2020: HK$550,000). The investment management ZE L (ZF - Z 4 :550,00008 7T) °
agreement has been terminated with effect from 5 January 2021. REERHZEERE B2 —F—

ARB®RER-

(i)~ On 20 January 2020, the former Chairman of the Group, who is also iy RZTE-ZTF—A=+H XEFFE
a shareholder of the Company, issued a Deed of Indemnity to the & (MARARRTRE) [ E R R
Group. On 15 March 2021, the former Chairman transferred the EBEE - R-_T-_—F=A+HHB
obligation under the deed of indemnity to the new board chairman. FEBBERBEETOESEZETH
The details of which are detailed in note 17(c). BEECEE -FBHRMFEI(Q) -

(i) On 15 March 2021, the new chairman of the Group, who is also a iy RZE-_—F=A+AB KEEDHH

shareholder of the Company, accepted the transfer of obligation
under the deed of indemnity from the former Chairman. The details
of which are detailed in note 17(c).
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26.

27.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group has participated in a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all eligible employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustee. Under the scheme, each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees makes monthly
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. The contributions from each of the
employer and employees are subject to a maximum
contribution of HK$1,500 (2020: HK$1,500) per month with
effective from 1 June 2014 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the

contributions payable in the future years.

The total contributions charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to approximately HK$69,000 (2020:
approximately HK$66,000), representing contributions payable
to the MPF Scheme by the Group in respect of the year ended
31 March 2021.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the end of reporting period, the minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for leased premise are

payable as follow:

26.

27.

RIREFETE
AEEZRBAREGEABESFEEHAREE
BRBBEEL2HEEEHRIGRHEIER
gl ([Eestall) -BBEesT a2 EEMAR
SECEESF AETAEFNZESREH -
BigEZTE A5E (BEX) REEESHR
BEBZFHE (ERRANMEATESFTEIE
Bl) 25%F AMEEStEERHR-BE =
Z—MOFESA—HR BEEREESBEZH
HExm AT A15008T (ZE 254 1,500
PETT) v Lb1& 2 (SRS B B o 37 AR WA FRIA
WO RREE RN 2 Ko

Eas
Eiu

§+/\,ﬂ$éuﬁz %P 2 R FE 69,0007 TT
—T T F {166,000 7T) - FEA K E 5

@i_;:*$:ﬂ5+*5¢$ﬁ§*%ﬁ§§
BEsElz e

REBERE
RB&E AR RETTHHEELAEREE
MERN 2 REBSFEMT -

2021 2020

—B-—F —TTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT THET

Within one year —FR 79 20
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

28. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

28.

R-EBE-_—F=A=1+—HE£KR2

FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021 7] B 3tk R &
2021 2020
=B —F T TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e FExT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BB KRB 13 29
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZEKE 781 781
Financial assets at fair value through BAVEFAEEMEZE
other comprehensive income W RIE 2 IS & E - 119
794 929
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through RO E AEERRE
profit or loss LB EE 28,717 34,096
Other receivables, deposits and HAb W HIA e R
prepayments TE T RRIE 125 676
Amount due from the shareholder JFEE LA P8 3R R IE 7,713 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG B B8 X B FRIA 7,323 7,617
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFED 8,480 2,289
52,358 44,678
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges HmEMAHIERESER 5,178 4,774
5,178 4,774
Net current assets REBEEFE 47,180 39,904
Net assets EERE 47,974 40,833
EQUITY =
Share capital % 21 12,698 10,582
Reserves [ 22 35,276 30,251
Total equity S ERR 47,974 40,833
On behalf of the directors REES
Han Zhenghai Chan Cheong Yee
BIEE fRE=
Director Director
2 EE
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 29. REHE DM KEERMEER

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BE
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values TRINTHFHQMAEREENKEE K
of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as defined in note BEZREBERATE:
4(9):
2021 2020
“BC-F 2
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE AYE REE AFHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THT THT
Financial assets: HBEE:
Financial assets at fair value through other B AFEFAEEMZE
comprehensive income KRB A BEE
- Unlisted equity securities —JFLETRAES 9,416 9,416 8,593 8,593
Financial assets at fair value through BATFEFATERERE
profit or loss OB EE
— Investments in convertible bonds —RERUBRRES 9,749 9,749 15,872 15,872
- Listed equity securities — ETRAE S 18,715 18,715 7,290 7,290
— Financial guarantee —-IBER 253 253 10,934 10,934
Financial assets measured at amortised costs  ZEHSHKAGH E 2 K EE
— Other receivables and deposits paid —HEthERFERE N RE 7,715 7,715 687 687
Loans and receivables ERREWGIR
- Cash and cash equivalents -ReRkBREFED 8,504 8,504 2,303 2,303
Financial liabilities SRAR
Financial liabilities measured BBENATEY
at amortised cost MBaE 5178 5178 4,849 4,849

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:—

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;

TRINREAFESEHE D AR FENELZ
PETEDH: -

£

RAES A E 2 ERTHHRE G

KRE)

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level F 4 BHiE (BMER) ks (RIZREER)
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either WEENEE AT REEABUE -
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from MEE — R BE®ME: &
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on F=A WIEERABERMSEIBENEES

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

BEZHBABE (TABEZHA
)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

29. RERE D e MBEERMBAE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BE (&)
(continued)
2021
“EC--F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-1 -t 1 =R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET TET TET
Financial assets at fair value through BAVYEFAEEMZE
other comprehensive income KERECHBERE
— Private equity securities -LEREES = = 9.416 9,416
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEGFAEBRRER
profit or loss ZHBEE
- Listed equity securities — ETRAE A 18,715 - - 18,715
— Investments in convertible bonds - RERATARES - - 9,749 9,749
~ Financial guarantee — B ER - = 253 253
18,715 - 19,418 38,133
2020
b S 23
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
g B E=R @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET THT THT
Financial assets at fair value through BAVEFAEEMZE
other comprehensive income KEREHBER
— Private equity securities -BERERE = = 8,593 8,593
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEGFAERRER
profit or loss ZHKEE
- Listed equity securities — EMRAES 7,290 = = 7,290
— Investments in convertible bonds -RERAARES - = 15,872 15,872
— Financial guarantee — TS ER = = 10,934 10,934
7,290 - 35,399 42,689
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 29. RBBIBP 2 MBEERMBEAR
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BE(F)
(continued)

REEXTABERBABE(E=ZF)UR
TEIIENM B TR HERMNT

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value
based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as

follows:
Financial assets  Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
through profit or through other
loss: Investments  comprehensive
in convertible income:
bondsand  Investments in
Financial  unlisted equity
guarantee securities Total
BAFETA
BAVERA EHMZE
HEREEZ KEEEZ
BBEE: HBEE:
RABRKRES RIELEmRRE
RERMBER EHRE CL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TR TAT
At 1 April 2020 RZE-TEFMA—H 26,806 8,593 35,399
Disposal L& (7,713) (2,478) (10,191)
Shareholder contribution BETE (1,200) s (1,200)
Total gain/(loss) miz/ (E8)
—in profit or loss (note a) —PE% (Kfsta) (7.891) = (7.891)
— in other comprehensive income (note b) -REMZENE (FFEb) - 3,301 3,301
At 31 March 2021 RZE-Z—%=R=+—H 10,002 9,416 19,418
Gain recognised in profit or loss relating to RAEERRE R HERE
financial instruments held by the Group MM BIARERS
at the end of reporting date R WS (7,891) - (7,891)
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEFRA—H 24,931 31,787 56,718
Purchases BE
Total gain/(loss) B/ (B18)
— in profit or loss (note a) —E% (Ki5a) 1,875 - 1,875
—in other comprehensive income (note b) —-REf2ERE (HEb) - (23,194) (23,194)
At 31 March 2020 RZE-ZFF=R=+—H 26,806 8,593 35,399
Gain recognised in profit or loss relating to RAEERRE R HERE
financial instruments held by the Group PEBE TARBRT
at the end of reporting date A 1,875 Z 1,875
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29.

30.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Notes:

(a) Included in the change in fair value of and net realised gain/(loss) on

disposal of financial assets at FVTPL.

(b) Included in the OCI related to investment revaluation.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, other receivables, other payables, borrowing and
amount due to directors. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash and cash equivalents which carry floating
interest rate, the Group has no other significant interest-
bearing assets with floating rates. The Group's income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes

in market interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

Assuming the balance at 31 March 2021 was the amount
for the whole year, if the interest rate was 50 basis points
higher or lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 would
decrease or increase by HK$42,520 (2020: decrease or increase
by HK$11,515).
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29.

30.

BERB D 2 MBEERMBRE
BE (&)

GEE
@ HABRAFEAAEREERIMBAER

FEZEZPREBERATEFTAERERE
CHMBEEZEERNE (BR)FHE-

(b) FABBREE G2 K2 Ak
MEEREEEERBE

AEETIZVBITARERAKRE HibRE
WHRIE HiENFIR BERENEER
HezEMBTRAZABRBMM ENE-
BRAZSH 5 T A Z B RS E A AR
ZERBRBRENWT -EEEERLE
B ARER B M B R B A B -

JES1
RRSRRLZENUTHRE L5 &
£ WAL BFIR 82 EAK A
E-ARERAREERLREASSIE
SRS FIE R -

BRE DN
BRENR—_EBE-_—F=ZA=Z+—H2z&%TZ
FE 2 WFE LA TRES0ME &2
MArEEMEHEIFIE AXEEHEE
T F=ZA=-+—RHLEFEZEHEEERD
81 142,520 BT (Z T T F D i
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 0. IBEAMEEEEREE (£)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign

operations.

Sensitivity analysis
The following table shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5%
increase/decrease in RMB against the Hong Kong dollars, the

effect in the loss for the year is as follows:

SMNEE =L B

AEBEBKBER AZREZEEE 25
ERE EPEZRABREKEARE(TAR
B ) - SNER R KRB BINEIZ RREER
5 CDHEREERBERARKEFE

TRIRARBEBTIE /R E%H K
FEBREEZGREIN:

Impact of RMB

AR zEE
2021 2020
=t - J= 3 ZETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT

Increase/decrease in loss for the year

AEZEREN, H

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
investments in convertible bonds, investments in PRC unlisted
equity securities and investments in Hong Kong listed equity
securities, which were classified as either financial assets at
FVTOCI (note 16) or financial assets at FVTPL (note 17) on
the consolidated statement of financial position. To manage
its price risk arising from investments in financial assets, the

Group diversified its portfolio.

FR < (8 4% L B

AEBAZBRANERRAR JIREREES
BRRKRFPDBRE A FEFAEEMEE
Wi 2 M5B E (M fE16) kir A FE
AFAEBRRRECMBEE (ME17) 27
BRESFRE FEIFLTRAESFKE N
REZLMBEARGRE REEREMH
BEMELZEBRAR AREDHEKRE

HE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —ZF - —F=A=+—HItFE
30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 30. i EMESEEERKE (£)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Sensitivity analysis BRED N
TRIAEMEEMBEEIF I ZERT

*ETFﬁﬁkéﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁﬂizﬁﬁﬁﬁégﬁﬁg :

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
(2020: 5%) change in the fair value of the financial assets with

all other variables held constant and based on their carrying NV ETREE (ZT_FF:5%) 2 BU
value amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the Eo-pRAFEFATEMZARSEE 2
financial assets at FVTOCI, the impact is deemed to be on WMBEEMS ﬁfa BEERABEIRES
the investment revaluation reserve and no account is given for HHREEENTE MUREEEMNEES
factors such as impairment, which might have an impact on AREr B RaR o BER.

the income statement.

Impact of financial assets Impact of investment

Impact of investments at fair value through other in Hong Kong listed

in convertible bonds comprehensive income equity securities

BAFEHA
ER 2 ENEER REBLHRA
RETRRESHYE HEEEVE ESHRAVE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

—B--f —Z-%F CZB--§ <-Z-TF CZB--F —Z-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTHET THT FTHET THT THET

Increase in loss for the year REFEBEM 487 794 - - 936 364
Increase/decrease in other HthiEa e

equity reserve 0,/ 5 - - 499 430 - =
Credit risk FERE

AEBYEBAEHEER

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

AEBERERR B RKRNORRER

The Group’s management considers that all financial assets

that are not impaired under review are of good credit quality,

including those that are past due.

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral

or other credit enhancement.

The credit risk for bank deposits and balances is considered
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with

high quality external credit ratings.

The followings are credit risk management practices and
guantitative and qualitative information about amounts arising

expected credit losses for each class of financial assets.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Other receivables and deposits

Apart from credit-impaired interest receivables with loss
allowance of approximately HK$2,563,000 as disclosed in
note 18, the Group provides for 12-month ECLs for all other
receivables and deposits at initial recognition. Where there
is a significant deterioration in credit risk or when the other
receivables and deposits are assessed to be credit-impaired,
the Group provides for lifetime ECLs. The ECLs incorporate
forward looking information such as forecast of economic
conditions. The Group considers the consistently low historical
default rates of counterparties. It is concluded that credit
risk inherent in the Group's remaining other receivables and
deposits is insignificant. The Group has assessed that the
remaining other receivables and deposits do not have a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
risk of default is insignificant, therefore the ECLs for these
remaining other receivables and deposits were immaterial
under the 12-month ECLs. No loss allowance for remaining
other receivables and deposits was recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
With regard to 2020 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group
is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash
flow from operations and to raise funds through issue and
allotment of new shares to meet its debt obligations as they

fall due.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the
end of reporting period is as follows:

China Investment Development Limited o & & HEGR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —F——F=A=+—HItFE

30. KEMEEEEREE (&)

HitEWREAR RS

BB £ 1857 B B 5L B AR (S ERUE FB IR UK
TR T 38 JE5 18 1 15 402,563,0008 TT Al AR B
RO R BT A B AR IR i &5t
RI2EAEHREERERE -HEERRR
ERE MRS E&&éwﬁmﬁﬁﬁ
BE AEEFHREFEPARMEREER
BE-FHEEBEBREMAARELER mE
EIRAEAE AEEERIHFTRAR
IKFZESLRBAR AU ASEGRTZ
H b FEUGR IR IR & 2 MRS BRI 7R
EoANEEDFERT 2 E M EUHIENIZ
THEERR B 1) 12 DA KL 8 R 2T
MEEDRBRIY NBRE AL 2120 A8
HEEBBRFTE ZEHR T 2 EME KRR
ez BMEEBRRYTER-BE_F
A=+t HLEFE UERBRTZ
Hith EUCRIA IR & R B R e o

REBESER

REERBDESRRMS A REEZETE
%%@Eﬁ%%%Zﬁﬁ&ﬁuw@%K¥

IRAKEEBEEREES YRERS
MERPZFE R _FT_TFERHEEME -
AEBZRBHESTEIORN B HEBKMER
WP ERENREBETREEHBNDE
SESUREBI RN EERAE 2

5o

AKENRERRZHBREZRBEROT -

Total Within

Carrying undiscounted one year

amount cash flows or on demand

AER

REE ReRELE -FATRER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THT FTHET
As at 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=A=1+—H

Other payables and accrued charges Hib S REREER 5,178 5178 5,178
As at 31 March 2020 RZZEZZE=A=1+—H

Other payables and accrued charges HitERFEREAER 4,849 4,849 4,849

Annual Report % 2021 125



China Investment Development Limited o & & HEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =—F=A=+—HItFE

S

32.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Group's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as debts divided by total assets. Debts included other
payables and accrued charges, borrowing and amount due
to directors and total assets included non-current assets and
current assets as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as

31.

E2EERHER
AEEZESEREBRIREASERERE
R ARBRRBEREE R SEMERRE
BRME FARESREENGSERE
BAREK RERLAZRELAERE ~&H
ARHBERARREN 2RSSR MERER
B BITHRM KD EEEARMBER-

AEEERMBRRME B REERGBL
RREEERER WHRTINEHKEE
BEHE -WEAMBRARMT EHE
REMENKAREFER BERENE
B MEEREBEANEBEIFRBDEENR

RBEHR BEEARLEWMT:

follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT
Debts 5,178 4,849
Total assets 54,509 45,919
Gearing ratio 9.50% 10.56%

EFFECT OF COVID-19 2. HBRENTE

Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus
("COVID-19") has dealt a big blow on the global business
environment. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Group applies fair value to measure its
financial assets at fair value through other income and fair
value through profit or loss. In 2021, fair value of the Group's
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss suffer from
fluctuations due to the COVID-19 outbreak. In view of the
development and spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the date
of this report, further changes in economic conditions arising
thereof may have negative impact on the financial results of
the Group, the extent of which could not be estimated as at
the date of this report. The Group will keep monitoring to the
situation of the COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on
the financial position and operating results of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE =T =-—F=A=+—HItFE

33. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(i)

On 4 May 2021, the Company proposed to raise gross
proceeds of approximately HK$127,000,000 before
expenses by way of a rights issue of up to 634,892,864
Rights Shares at a price of HK$0.2 per Rights Share on the
basis of one Rights Share for every two existing Shares
held by the shareholders.

On 28 June 2021, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party by
which the Group agreed to sell, and the buyer agreed to
buy 1% (representing 1 owned share) of equity interest in
Huge Leader for a cash consideration of HK$50,000. As
the consideration for disposal of equity interest in Huge
Leader falls below 70% of its respective fair value as at
31 March 2019, the Chairman of the Group is required to
pay a total amount of shortfall of HK$264,000 (after taking
into account the consideration received) to the Company
under the terms of the Deed of Indemnity as mentioned

in note 17(c) above.

34. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2021.

33. HEHRER

(i)

(ii)

R-E-_—FHANB  ARRIEHIK
MR TR A MR A R rT B — ARt
AR AR 1 B0 B2 - DAAR 5 IR B AR AR
A 170.27% 7T (B 1% 317 &« 634,892,864
PR R 1D AEBEFMEBRERAEY
127,000,000 7t (1 B Al ©

R-TE_—®FXA-+N\B AQFHE
—RBUE=FFINEEBEHE B
AEBRELEME HREREEHuge
Leaderf)1%ix # (18 E M1 &% B ik
7) 38 & R{E AB50,0008 - AR HE
High LeaderfEm MR EBEEREE_-Z
—NF=ZA=+—HBZ22AFERT0%"
HUAR #8 | 3BT 5517 (c) P st 58 18 22 4% 9
B AEBEEAERARRZFTRE
2 BG $264,00078 T (K5t ABBKE
&)

34. #tEB KR
BN T —FAA-TAIERE
BT BB 3% -
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HFUBERE

Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1—-HLEFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“E--F —ZT-TFE “ZT—HN&E —F-\f —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET TET FTET
RESULTS S
Revenue Wgs - - 600 600 600
Loss before income tax expense BRI ER L A E R (15,450) (52,541) (87,911) (19,365) (14,707)
Income tax expense FERRAX - - = = =
Loss for the year attributable to ARTBEBAEGEAFE
owners of the Company BB (15,450) (52,541) (87,911 (19,365) (14,707)
Year ended 31 March
BZE=RA=1—-HALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EZ-§ T TN ZT-\F ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FTEL TET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,429 8,726 37,778 105,423 115,361
Current assets MEEE 45,080 37,193 71,694 125,716 144,276
Current liabilities MEEE (5,178) (4,849) (3,601) (821) (1,822)
Non-current liabilities FrRBasE - - S = =
Total equity ERE% 49,331 41,070 105,871 230,318 257,815
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